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Independent auditor's report
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright Water Limited

(the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") set out on pages 7 to 103 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

s

rHK(IFRIC) Interpretation 12 - Service doncéss:on A)‘rmégénzen?s ( HK(IFRZC)—jI;t Ié 'j ?m& féevéﬁué |

Recognition

The Group enters into service concession arrangements
with municipalities in the People's Republic of China to
build and/or operate waste water treatment plants. The
Group recognises the consideration for the construction
services as contract assets and/or intangible assets for
service concession arrangements within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12. As the related amounts are material
and the application of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires
significant management judgement, we identified this as
a key audit matter.

The Group applies HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 in its recognition
of revenue from service concession arrangements, which
includes revenue relating to construction services,
operation income and finance income. Disclosure of the
revenue is included in notes 2.5, 3 and 5 to the financial
statements.

Construction service revenue is measured based on the
Group's estimation of the fair value of construction
services and the percentage of construction completed
during the year. Significant judgement is required in
determining the fair value of the construction services
and involves estimation of the total construction costs
and the margin for each contract. The Group engaged an
independent financial modelling consultant to assist in
the estimation of the fair value of the construction
services. The percentage of construction completed
during the year is estimated based on the survey of work
performed by independent surveyors with relevant
qualifications and industry experience. Judgement is
required in estimating the percentage of construction
completed.

We assessed the appropriateness of the Group's
revenue recognition policies, evaluated the Group's
process in assessing the applicability of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 12 and also reviewed the associated agreements to
assess whether these agreements are appropriately
identified as service concession arrangements to be
within the scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12.

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the independent consultant and
surveyors engaged by management. We reviewed the
progress reports for projects under construction and
the reasonableness of the revenue recognised over
time.

We reviewed management's computation of
amortised cost of contract assets and intangible assets
and allocation of consideration between contract
assets and intangible assets and the related revenue
recognised during the year and tested key estimates
including discount rates used by management by
comparing to the relevant market interest rates to
assess appropriateness.

We engaged our internal specialists to review the
valuation methodology and the reasonableness of
certain key assumptions such as the margin used and
the industry comparable companies in the
determination of the fair value of the construction
services in the financial model.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures
related to service concession arrangements in the
financial statements.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Globa! Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Recoverability of trade receivables

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade
receivables amounting to HK$4,434,548,000, net of
expected credit loss ("ECL") allowance of
HK$626,215,000. The Group determines impairment
losses by making debtor-specific assessment of ECL for
credit impaired debtors and has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment for the
remaining group of debtors.

The estimation of impairment loss of trade receivables is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of trade receivables as well as expectation of
forward-looking factors. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, taking into consideration
the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each debtor. Accordingly, we identified this
as a key audit matter. Disclosures of the trade
receivables are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 21 to the
financial statements.

We obtained an understanding of management's
processes relating to the monitoring of trade
receivables.

In assessing the adequacy of the ECL allowance, we
reviewed the ageing analysis of the debtors to identify
potential collectability issues, reviewed data used in
management's assessment of default rates and
assessed the reasonableness of management's
assumptions used in establishing the forward-looking
adjustments.  In addition, we discussed with
management about the status of significant overdue
individual ~ debiors' balance, = management's
consideration of the debtors' specific profiles and
risks, reviewed settlement history and assessed
management's assumptions used to determine the
ECL allowance. We also requested direct
confirmations and considered receipts subsequent to
the year end.

We further considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures regarding the estimation uncertainty
involved in determining the ECL allowance.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)

To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets requires goodwill to be
tested annually for impairment or more frequently when
there is an indication that the cash-generating unit
("CGU") may be impaired. This assessment requires the
exercise of significant judgement about the future market
conditions, including future cash flows to be generated
from the continuing use of the waste water treatment
plants over the service concession period.  The
determination of the recoverable amount requires
judgement in both identification and valuation of the
relevant CGU. Accordingly, we identified this as a key
audit matter.

The Group determined that the water environment
management segment was accounted for as a collective
CGU for the purpose of impairment testing. The
impairment assessment was determined using a value-in-
use model based on the discounted cash flows projection.
Assumptions such as estimated key financial data, the
growth rate and discount rate used to determine the
discounted cash flows required significant judgements
by the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the goodwill carried in the
Group's  financial  statements  amounted  to
HK$1,364,093,000.  Disclosures of goodwill are
included in notes 2.5, 3 and 16 to the financial
statements.

We reviewed the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of the CGU.

We assessed the appropriateness of the discount rate
used by assessing the cost of capital of the Company
and comparable organisations in the industry, and
using our internal valuation specialists to
independently develop expectations for the discount
rate, and comparing the independent expectations to
those used by management.

We reviewed the cash flows forecasts by comparing
them to recent and past performance, taking into
consideration the approach used in the valuation. We
tested the reasonableness of key assumptions used in
the cash flows forecast, which include growth rate,
discount rate and long-term growth rate.

We also assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in the financial statements on the impairment
assessment, specifically on the key assumptions that
have the most significant effect on the determination
of the recoverable amount of the goodwill.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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Independent auditor's report (continued)
To the directors of China Everbright Water Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion. '

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Chung Yuk Man.

o

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
30 April 2024

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2023

REVENUE
Direct costs and operating expenses

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net

Administrative and other operating expenses
Finance income

Finance costs

Share of profits of associates

Share of profit of a joint venture

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences arising on translation of
functional currency to presentation currency

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR
THE YEAR

Notes

~1 ~J

2023
HK$'000

6,704,684

(3,882,301)

2,822,383

46,007

( 641,273)
26,658

( 590,921)
2,008

1,261

1,666,123

( 404,910)

1,261,213

( 445,920)
( 445,920)

815,293

2022
HK$'000

6,727,967

(4,163,980)

2,563,987

53,793
( 730,683)
28,302
( 544,615)
11,226

1,382,010

( 315,101)

1,066,909

(1,672,596)
(1,672,596)

( 605,687)

continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company
Holders of perpetual capital instruments
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Equity holders of the Company
Holders of perpetual capital instruments
Non-confrolling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
- Basic and diluted

Notes 2023
HK$'000

1,187,412
37,578
36,223

1,261,213

774,922
37,578

2,793

815,293

11
HK41.51 cents

2022
HK$'000

1,010,565
14,334
42,010

1,066,909

( 550,953)
14,334
( 69,068)

( 605,687)

HK35.32 cents




CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2023

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties

Intangible assets
Goodwill

Interests in associates
Interest in a joint venture
Contract assefs

Other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Contract assets

Other financial assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Tax payable

Lease liabilities

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes

12
14(a)
13

15
16
17
18
19
21
27

19
22
20
21
23

24
25

14(b)

2023
HK$'000

970,663
88,500
11,096

1,070,259

2,156,026
1,364,093
11,953
1,262
19,779,711
235,125
880

24,619,309

2,157,706
121,148
58,336
5,382,761

1,881,401

9,601,352

3,241,736
4,606,893
84,410

5,412
7,938,451
1,662,901

26,282,210

2022
HK$'000

994,950
89,835
11,398

1,096,183

2,369,863
1,400,952
11,094

19,077,113
556,154
3,253

24,514,612

2,010,393
221,717
85,820
3,767,702
2,845,907

8,931,539

3,168,112
5,686,435
61,329
2,656

8,918,532
13,007

24,527,619

continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

31 December 2023

Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 25 10,798,480 9,575,700
Deferred tax liabilities 27 2,029,945 1,950,690
Lease liabilities 14(b) 1,443 351
Total non-current liabilities 12,829,868 11,526,741
NET ASSETS 13,452,342 13,000,878
EQUITY
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital 28 2,860,877 2,860,877
Reserves 29 8,545,244 8,106,613
11,406,121 10,967,490
Perpetual capital instruments 30 806,982 806,982
Non-controlling interests 1,239,239 1,226,406
TOTAL EQUITY 13,452,342 13,000,878
ol N
T 7D - Sev, ; ‘%\/ %
Director Director
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of intangible assets
Finance costs
Interest income
Share of profits of associates
Share of profit of a joint venture
Fair value changes of other financial assets, net
Allowance for expected credit losses on
trade receivables, net
Allowance for expected credit losses on
other receivables, net
Allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets
Impairment of intangible assets
Effect on foreign exchange rates changes, net

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in contract assets

Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash used in operations
People’s Republic of China ("PRC") income tax paid

Net cash flows used in operating activities

15

Notes

~1 =] 00 OO0 00 OO OO

2023
HK$'000

1,666,123

51,771
10,055
150,641
( 19)
2,853
590,921
( 26,658)
( 2,008)
( 1,261)
32,304

194,487

466
1,282

( 100,668)

2,570,789
26,126

(1,433,887)

(1,565,580)

116,264

( 286,288)

( 242,495)

( 528,783)

2022
HK$'000

1,382,010

63,424
13,243
177,231
94

544,615
( 28302)
( 11,226)
15,785
226,899
33,829

4,002
14,230

( 155,383)

2,280,451

( 22,344)
(1,275,259)
(1,310,398)

( 61,043)

( 388,593)

( 251,036)

( 639,629)

continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
Payment for additions of intangible assets

Capital contribution to an associate

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from an associate
Proceeds from redemption of other financial assets
Interest received

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contributions from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries

Proceeds from the issuance of medium-term notes
("MTN"), net of related expenses paid

Proceeds from the issuance of super and short-term

commercial papers ("SCP"), net of related expenses paid

Proceeds from the issuance of perpetual capital
instruments, net of related expenses paid

New bank loans

Repayment of corporate bonds

Repayment of MTN

Repayment of asset-backed securities ("ABS")

Repayment of SCP

Repayment of bank loans

Interest paid

Principal elements of lease payments

Interest elements of lease payments

Increase in restricted bank balances

Dividends paid to sharcholders of the Company

Dividends paid to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Distribution to holders of perpetual capital instruments

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

16

Notes

31(a)

30

31(a)

31(a)

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
- ( 9,606)

( 54,079) ( 116,979)
233 478

( 1,636) ( 255,754)
( 443) -
2,836 ( 385)
9,790 -
26,658 28,302

( 16,641) ( 353,944)
10,040 24,544
3,856,583 1,233,688
1,152,800 2,384,000
- 806,982
4,260,355 4,483,246
( 858,363) ( 820,750)
(1,089,500) -
( 152,684) ( 66,190)
(2,225,800) (1,156,300)
(4,393,707) (4,215,294)
( 550,329) ( 503,664)
( 7,132) ( 10,329)
( 353) ( 602)
( 18,919) ( 17
( 336,718) ( 356,358)
- ( 17,573)

( 25,558) -
( 379,285) 1,785,383
continued/...



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ( 924,709) 791,810
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 2,844,990 2,281,001
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and
cash equivalents, net ( 58374) ( 227,821)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF YEAR 1,861,907 2,844,990
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position 23 1,881,401 2,845,907
Less: Restricted bank balances 23 ( 19,494) ( 917)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 1,861,907 2,844,990
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

2.1

2.2

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Everbright Water Limited (the "Company") is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and is dual primary listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and the Mainboard of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The registered address
of the Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is located at 26th Floor, Block A, Oriental Xintiandi Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan
Avenue, Futian District, Shenzhen, PRC 518000.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company's subsidiaries are
primarily involved in the water environment management business in the PRC.

The immediate holding company of the Company is China Everbright Water Holdings Limited

("CEWHL"), a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"). Inthe
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding entity of the Company is China Investment
Corporation, an entity established in the PRC.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA™).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements are not statutory financial statements and are prepared solely, at the
request of management, for the purpose of issuance of corporate bonds or notes to institutional
investors in the national inter-bank bond market of the PRC.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") which have
been measured at fair value.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi ("RMB"). These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the Company's presentation currency, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group") for the year ended 31 December 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.c., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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22

23

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. When the
Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the foreign currency translation reserve; and recognises
the fair value of any investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year's financial statements.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules

19



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

23

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised HKFRSs that are applicable to the Group are
described below:

(2)

(b)

(©)

(D

Amendments to HKAS 1 require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the material accounting policy information in
note 2 to the financial statements. The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates
and changes in accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
The amendments had no impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related fo Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that
it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available)
and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The

amendments had no impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a
mandatory temporary exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes
arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The amendments also
introduce disclosure requirements for the affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand the entities' exposure to Pillar Two income taxes, including the
disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods when
Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which the legislation
is enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has applied the
amendments and the mandatory temporary exception retrospectively. Further disclosures
are included in note 9 to the financial statements.
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2.4

2.5

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements. The Group intends to apply these revised HKFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the "2020 Amendments")"*
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the "2022
Amendments")"*
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangements'
HKFRS 7
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with
no change in conclusion

EERV R

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these revised HKFRSs upon
initial application, but is not yet in a position to state whether these revised HKFRSs would have any
significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates is
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates.
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2.5

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Service concession arrangements
The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with the local government
authorities in the PRC (the "Grantors").

Under these service concession arrangements:

. the Grantors control or regulate the services the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price; and
. the Grantors control, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any significant

residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement, or the
infrastructure is used for its entire useful life under the arrangements, or both the Group's
practical ability to sell or pledge the infrastructure is restricted and continuing right of use of
the infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout the period of the arrangements.

The Group's infrastructure includes leasehold land, buildings, plant and machinery that are acquired
from the Grantors and/or are derecognised by the Group when the directors of the Company
consider that the significant risks and rewards of these assets have been passed to the Grantors.

Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the
Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of
the grantor for the construction services rendered and/or the consideration paid and payable by the
Group for the right to manage and operate the infrastructure for public service. The Group has an
unconditional right to receive cash if the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the Group (a)
specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from users of
the public service and specified or determinable amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the
Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets specified requirements. The financial asset (receivable
under service concession arrangement) is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for
"Financial assets and liabilities" below.

An intangible asset (concession right) is recognised to the extent that the Group receives a right to
charge users of the public service. The intangible asset (concession right) is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is provided on a
straight-line basis over the operation phase of the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an intangible

asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is recognised initially
at the fair value of the consideration.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Service concession arrangements (continued)
Construction of service concession related infrastructure

Revenue relating to construction services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for "Revenue
recognition" below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for "Revenue
recognition” below.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and certain equity investments and wealth
management products at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required

(other than inventories, construction contract assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating
unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person
@) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or
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2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii)  aperson identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

viil)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, rovides key management
y p part, p Y g
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to ifs
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2.5% to 4%
Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20%
Leasehold improvements, furniture

and fixtures 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles and office equipment 12.5% to 25%
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair
values of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group from the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

[f the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is Jower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups
of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit {group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss
is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on

the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of
the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

The following intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Concession rights 20 to 32 years
Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years
Computer software 5 years
Customer relationships 5 years

The useful life of the patents and trademarks of the Group is determined based on the shorter of their
statutory validity periods and the expected benefit periods.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
The useful life of the customer relationships of the Group is determined based on the expected
benefit periods with reference to the historical customer attrition rate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the intangible asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant intangible asset.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new water environment technologies is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete
the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development. Water
environment technologies development expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Financial instruments .
‘A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

6} Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other coniprehensive income ("OCI"), and FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are "solely payments of principal and
interest" on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its

financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

®

Financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost {debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are
met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
upon initial recognition at FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortised cost, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through OCL Dividends on equity investments are recognised as other
income in profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the hybrid
contract is not measured at FVPL. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a
change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the FVPL category.
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MATERJAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

@

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a "pass-through" arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In that case, the
Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans

and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings and lease
liabilities.
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2.5

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECLs") for all loans
and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL using a forward-looking ECL approach.

The ECL allowance is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the asset's original effective interest rate ("EIR").

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group has applied the standard's simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

Other receivables are assessed for impairment based on 12-month ECLs: 12-month ECLs are the
portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the asset is less than 12 months). However,
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payment are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise raw materials and consumables used in the repairs and maintenance of
the waste water treatment plants, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. When inventories are consumed,
the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, short-term deposits and short-term balances in

financial institutions with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition that are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, restricted bank balances are excluded
whilst bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are included in cash and cash equivalents.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time
is included in profit or loss.
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2.5

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an

asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

‘o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in

subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.5

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the

grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs,
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or loss by way
of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

The Group has satisfied a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the
following criteria is met:

(a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs

(b) The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced

(c) The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternate use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.
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2.5

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Reventie from contracts with customers (continued)

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the period of the confract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the
surveyors' assessment of work performed and the costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as
a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

When the Group provides more than one service in a service concession arrangement, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation by reference to their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market assessment approach, depending
on the availability of observable information.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the
effect of a financing component if it is significant.

Construction service revenue

The Group's performance in respect of construction services creates or enhances an asset or work in
progress that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced, thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue from construction service over time, by reference to
completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the surveyors' assessment of work
performed and the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a service concession agreement is estimated on a cost-
plus basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margin at the date of the agreement
applicable to similar construction services rendered.

Operation revenue

The Group recognises revenue from environmental water project operation services when the related
services are rendered. The operation revenue from reusable water supply service is recognised at a
point in time when the Group has delivered water to the customer; the customer has accepted the
water; the Group has the present right to payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
The other operation revenue from service concession arrangements is recognised over the period of
time that the services are rendered and the benefits are received and consumed simultaneously by the
cusfomers.

Finance and interest income

Finance and interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the EIR method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains rights to receive consideration from
the customer and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to the
customer. The combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise to a net assetor a
net liability depending on the relationship between the remaining rights and the performance
obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of the remaining
rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance obligation. Conversely, the contract is a
Jiability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining performance obligations
exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer within contract
assets if the Group expects to recover those costs.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying

assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is RMB. These financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company's presentation currency. The Company has used HKS$ as its presentation
currency to be consistent with that of CEWHL. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Differences arising on seftlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group's net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax
charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
other comprehensive income.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company, certain overseas subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture are currencies other than the HK$. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of comprehensive income are translated into HK$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the foreign currency translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of the Company, certain
overseas subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of these entities which arise
throughout the year are translated into HKS$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

37



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following

judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Service concession arrangements
The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer ("BOT"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer ("TOT") and
Build-Operate-Own ("BOO") arrangements in respect of its environmental water projects.

The Group has concluded that all the BOT and TOT arrangements and certain BOO arrangements
are service concession arrangements under HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 12 Service Concession
Arrangements ("HK(IFRIC)-Int 12"), because the local government controls and regulates the
services that the Group must provide with the infrastructure ata pre-determined service charge. In
respect of BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of concession right agreements, the
infrastructure has to be transferred to the local government at nil consideration. Infrastructure for
BOO arrangements is used in the service concession arrangements for its entire or substantially
entire useful life.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Contract assets and/or intangible assets under HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

The Group recognises the consideration received or receivable in exchange for the construction
services as a contract asset and/or an intangible asset under a service concession arrangement.
However, if the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a contract asset and partly by
an intangible asset, it is necessary to account separately for each component of the operator's
consideration. The consideration received or receivable for both components shall be recognised

initially at the fair value.

The segregation of the consideration for a service concession arrangement between the contract
asset component and the intangible asset component, if any, requires the Group to make an estimate
of a number of factors, which include, inter alia, fair value of the construction services, expected
future water treatment volume of the relevant water treatment plant over its service concession
period, future guaranteed receipts and unguaranteed receipts, and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. These estimates, including revenue
recognition under the contract asset and intangible asset components are determined by the Group's
management based on their experience and assessment on current and future market conditions. The
carrying amounts of the intangible assets ("concession rights") and contract assets at the end of

reporting period are disclosed “n notes 15 and 19 to the financial statements, respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets at
each reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (other than goodwill) are disclosed in notes 12 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

Impairment of financial assels at amortised cost and contract assets

The impairment loss in respect of contract assets, trade and other receivables of the Group is based
on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of contract assets, trade and other receivables
and on management's judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. If the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments, additional allowances
may be required.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets at amortised cost and contract assets are
disclosed in notes 19, 21 and 23 to the financial statements.

Revenue recognition for construction work

The Group recognises contract revenue over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation at the reporting date. The progress is measured based on
the Group's effort or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to the
surveyors' assessment of work performed and the costs incurred up to the end of the reporting period
as a percentage of total estimated costs for each performance obligation in the contract. Significant
assumptions are required to estimate the recoverable variation works that will affect the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates in each construction contract as the contract progresses.

Impairment losses for goodwill

As explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements for "Business
combinations and goodwill", goodwill is allocated to 2 cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination for the purpose of
impairment assessment, which requires significant judgement. The Group determined that the group
of cash-generating units to which goodwill was allocated reflected the lowest level at which
goodwill was monitored for internal reporting and was not larger than an operating segment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assels.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment losses for gooawill (continued)

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This involves an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at the reporting date is
disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account all changes in tax legislation. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact the income and other taxes and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are identified based on the internal reports about components of the Group that
are regularly reviewed by the Company's management and the board of directors for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporate assets and
expense, interest-bearing borrowings and related expenses and income and deferred taxes. The
Group operates in a single business segment which is the water environment management business.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable operating segment.

Business segment

The Group had only one operating segment for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
namely the water environment management business, the details of which are set out below:

. Water environment management - Engagement in municipal waste water treatment,
industrial waste water treatment, water supply, reusable water, sludge treatment and
disposal, sponge city construction, river-basin ecological restoration, waste water source
heat pump, leachate treatment, research and development ("R&D") of water environment
technologies and engineering construction.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

() Revenue from external customers
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mainland China 6,653,554 6,713,391
Germany 51,130 14,576
6,704,684 6,727,967
The revenue information above is based on the locations at which the services were
provided.
(b) Non-current assets
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mainland China 24,611,079 24,509,798
Hong Kong 3,164 956
Singapore 2,753 447
Germany 171 158
Mauritius 1,262 -
24,618,429 24,511,359
The non-current assets information above is based on the locations of the assets and
excludes deferred tax assets.
Major customers
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Customer 1%* 875,462 723,986
Customer 2** N/A* 679,072
* The corresponding revenue from this customer is not disclosed as such revenue alone did

not account for 10% or more of the Group's revenue.

** The customers are local government authorities.
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5. REVENUE
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Construction service revenue from service
concession arrangements 2,066,019 2,403,740
Finance income from service concession arrangements 1,097,182 1,107,945
Operation income from service concession arrangements 3,104,693 2,950,629
Construction contract revenue and technical service income 436,790 265,653
Total 6,704,684 6,727,967
Timing of revenue recognition:
At a point in time 212,158 170,522
Over time 5,395,344 5,449,500
5,607,502 5,620,022
Finance income from service concession arrangements 1,097,182 1,107,945
Total 6,704,684 6,727,967

The aggregated amount of construction service revenue, finance income and operation income
derived from the local government authorities in the PRC amounted to HK$6,179,504,000 (2022:
HK$6,357,746,000) for the year ended 31 December 2023. Details of concentrations of credit risk
arising from these customers are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Included in the revenue recognised in the year ended 31 December 2023, HK$155,895,000 (2022:
Nil) was related to performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations {unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unsatisfied performance obligations related to service
concession arrangements:
Expected to be recognised within one year 6,312,294 6,370,953
Expected to be recognised after one year 132,941,326 104,437,621
Total transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations 139,253,620 110,808,574

The Group has applied the practical expedient under HKFRS 15 and does not include information
about revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfied the remaining performance
obligations for contracts with an original expected duration of one year or less.
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6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Government grants® 30,640 37,365

Value-added tax ("VAT") refunds** 21,786 19,855

Fair value gains/(losses), net:

Other financial assets - unlisted investments (31,218) (18,382)

Other financial assets - unlisted equity investments ( 1,586) 2,597

Sundry income 26,385 12,358

Total 46,007 53,793

Government grants were granted during the year ended 31 December 2023 to subsidise
certain waste water treatment plants of the Group in the PRC. The receipt of such grants is
not subject to any unfulfilled conditions or any other contingencies. There is no assurance
that the Group will continue to receive such grants in the future.

VAT refunds were received/receivable during the year ended 31 December 2023 in relation
to the Group's certain environmental water projects in operation in the PRC. The receipt of
such tax refunds is not subject to any unfulfilled conditions or any other contingencies.

There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such tax refunds in the future.

NET FINANCE COSTS
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Finance income
Interest income on:
Bank deposits 26,306 27,929
Amounts due from an associate 352 373
Total finance income 26,658 28,302
Finance costs
Interest expense on:
Bank and other loans (368,128) (330,138)
Corporate bonds, ABS, MTN and SCP (222,440) (213,875)
Lease liabilities (  353) (  602)
Total finance costs (590,921) (544,615)
Net finance costs (564,263) (516,313)
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes 2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Depreciation®
- property, plant and equipment 12 51,771 63,424
- right-of-use assets 14(a) 10,055 13,243
Amortisation of intangible assets® 15 150,641 177,231
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment ( 19) 94
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 2,853 -
Cost of construction services from service
concession arrangements** 1,629,194 1,730,322
R&D costs 52,538 50,976
Rental expenses from short-term leases 1,258 4,188
Allowance for expected credit losses on
trade receivables, net 21 194,487 226,899
Allowance for expected credit losses on
other receivables, net 21 466 33,829
Allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets 19 1,282 - 4,002
Impairment of intangible assets 15 - 14,230
Foreign exchange differences, net ( 67,813) ( 39,620)
Employee benefit expense™
Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 431,100 415,334
Retirement scheme contributions 53,010 58,764
Total 484,110 474,098
Auditor's remuneration
- Audit services 3,650 3,550
- Other services 1,019 1,119
* Amortisation of intangible assets, depreciation and employee benefit expense in total of

HK$381,025,000 (2022: HK$440,349,000) for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
included in "Direct costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

** Included in "Direct costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited contributions available to reduce its
contributions to the retirement schemes in future years (2022: Nil).
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0. INCOME TAX

No provision for Singapore or Hong Kong income tax was made as the Group did not earn any
income subject to Singapore or Hong Kong income tax during the year ended 31 December 2023

(2022: Nil).

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory rate of 25% based on the assessable profits in
accordance with the tax rules and regulations in the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2023, certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% pursuant

to the relevant tax rules and regulations. During the year ended 31 December

2023, certain PRC

subsidiaries of the Group were subject to tax at half of the foregoing statutory rate or fully exempted

from income tax pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations.

Current - PRC:
Charge for the year
Underprovision in prior years
Deferred (note 27)

Total tax expense for the year

2023
HK$'000

260,619
7,066

137,225

404,910

2022
HK$'000

238,790
1,524

74,7817

315,101

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the country
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

effective tax rate is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax calculated at tax rate of 25%
Tax concession
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous periods
Profits attributable to associates and a joint venture
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax losses not recognised
Tax losses utilised from previous periods
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits
of the Group's PRC subsidiaries

Tax expense at the Group's effective rate
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(

(

2023
HK$'000

1,666,123

416,531
222,363)
7,066
817)
37,471)
181,186
11,017
6,015)

55,776

404,910

(

(
(

(

2022
HK$'000

1,382,010

345,502
254,369)
1,524
2,807)
12,731)
157,424
27,969
1,185)

53,774

315,101
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10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

Pillar Two income taxes

As stated in note 2.3(d), the Group has applied the mandatory exception to recognising and
disclosing information about deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from Pillar Two income taxes,
and will account for the Pillar Two income taxes as current tax when incurred. Pillar Two
legislation has been enacted or substantively enacted in certain jurisdictions in which the Group
operates, and the legislation will be effective for the Group's financial year beginning 1 January
2024.

The Group has assessed its potential exposure based on the information available regarding the
financial performance of the Group in the current year. As such, it may not be entirely
representative of future circumstances. Based on the assessment, the Pillar Two effective tax rates
in most of the jurisdictions in which it operates are above 15%. There are a limited number of
jurisdictions where the Pillar Two offective tax rate is slightly below 15%. The Group does not
expect a material exposure to Pillar Two income taxes.

DIVIDENDS

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000

Dividends for the financial year:
Interim - HK6.63 cents (equivalent to
1.13 Singapore cents ("Sing cents")) (2022:
HK5.45 cents (equivalent to 0.98 Sing cent)
per ordinary share 189,901 156,172

Proposed final - HKS.81 cents (equivalent to
0.99 Sing cent) (2022: HK5.14 cents (equivalent
to 0.86 Sing cent)) per ordinary share 166,323 146,390

Final dividend for the previous financial year
which was paid during the financial year -
HK5.14 cents (equivalent to 0.86 Sing cent)
(2022: HK6.83 cents (equivalent to 1.19 Sing cents))
per ordinary share 146,390 195,468

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed after the end of
the reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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11.

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based on the Group's profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$1,187,412,000 (2022: HK$1,010,565,000)
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company of approximately
2,860,877,000 (2022: approximately 2,860,877,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold
improve- Motor
ments, vehicles
Plant and furniture and office Construction
Buildings  machinery and fixtures equipment  in progress Total

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

31 December 2023
Cost:
At 1 January 2023 659,601 336,734 17,659 109,397 83,945 1,207,336
Additions - 1,189 1,965 6,094 44,831 54,079
Transfers 24,762 90,386 - 40 (115,188) -
Disposals - 9) ( 142) ( 4,959 -  5110)
Exchange realignment ( 17,840) ( 10,459) ( 437) ( 2,875) ( 1,041) ( 32,652)
At 31 December 2023 666,523 417,841 19,045 107,697 12,547 1,223,653
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2023 75,489 57,267 11,401 68,229 - 212,386
Charge for the year 20,729 18,439 1,203 11,400 - 51,771
Disposals - ( 4) ( 142) { 4,750) - 4,89
Exchange realignment ( 2,300) ( 1,826) ( 258) ( 1,887) - (6271
At 31 December 2023 93,918 73,876 12,204 72,992 - 252,990
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023 572,605 343,965 6,841 34,705 12,547 970,663
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12.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Leasehold
improve- Motor
ments, vehicles
Plant and furniture and office Construction
Buildings  machinery and fixtures equipment  in progress Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

31 December 2022
Cost:
At 1 January 2022 719,758 367,138 16,527 97,190 12,927 1,213,540
Additions 1,596 1,733 2,525 25,480 85,645 116,979
Disposals - { 575 ( 62) { 4,039 - ( 4,676)
Exchange realignment ( 61,753) ( 31,562) ( 1,331) ( 9,234) (14,627) ( 118,507)
At 31 December 2022 659,601 336,734 17,659 109,397 83,945 1,207,336
Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 January 2022 58,874 41,031 10,910 59,193 - 170,008
Charge for the year 22,599 21,027 1,349 18,449 - 63,424
Disposals - ( 313) { 62) ( 3,729) - 4,104)
Exchange realignment ( 5,984) ( 4,478) ( 796) ( 5,684) - ( 16942)
At 31 December 2022 75,489 57,267 11,401 68,229 - 212,386
Net carrying amount: )
At 31 December 2022 584,112 279,467 6,258 41,168 83,945 994,950

The property ownership certificates of certain buildings of the Group in the PRC (the "Buildings")
with an aggregate net carrying amount of HK$14,880,000 (2022: HK$16,572,000) as at 31 December
2023 have not yet been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, pursuant to the relevant agreements signed with the local government authorities in the
PRC and based on the advice from the Company's PRC legal adviser, Zhong Lun Law Firm, the
Group has the proper legal rights to occupy and use the Buildings. )
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Carrying amount at 1 January 11,398 12,468
Exchange realignment ( 302) ( 1,070)

Carrying amount at 31 December 11,096 11,398

The directors of the Company have determined that the Group's investment properties are
commercial investment properties based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.
The Group's investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2023 based on valuation
performed by management, at HK$11,096,000 (2022: HK$11,398,000).

The investment properties are leased or will be leased to third parties under operating leases, further
summary details of which are included in note 14 to the financial statements.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's investment

properties:
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2023 using
Quoted
prices in  Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial investment properties - - 11,096 11,096
Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2022 using
Quoted
pricesin  Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Recurring fair value
measurement for:
Commercial investment properties - - 11,398 11,398
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of

and no transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs to the valuation of
investment properties together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis:

Commercial
investment

property

Commercial
investment

property

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input
Discounted cash Estimated rental
flow method value
Rent growth
Discount rate
Market Estimated sales
comparison price
approach

50

Sensitivity of fair

Range value fo the input
RMB185 per 5% (2022: 5%) increase
square meter (decrease) in
annually (2022: estimated rental value
RMB185 per would result in
square meter increase (decrease)
annually) in fair value by
HK$71,000
(2022: HK$69,000)
5% 1% (2022: 1%) increase

(2022: 5%)

3%
(2022: 3%)

RMBS,228 per
square meter
(2022:
RMBS,257 per
square meter)

(decrease) in rent
growth would result

in increase in fair value
by HK$58,000

(2022: HK$113,000) or
decrease in fair value
by HK$158,000

(2022: HK$103,000)

1% (2022: 1%) increase
(decrease) in

discount rate would
result in decrease in
fair value by
HK$273,000

(2022: HK$219,000) or
increase in fair value
by HK$203,000

(2022: HK$259,000)

5% (2022: 5%) increase
(decrease) in estimated
sales price would result
in increase (decrease)
in fair value by
HX$412,000

(2022: HK$412,000)
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated using assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset's life including an exit or terminal value. This
method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property interest. A market-derived
discount rate is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately determined and
differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by
events such as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of
property. The periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable
expenses, collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and
other operating and management expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then discounted.

Under market comparison approach, fair value of investment properties is determined by reference
to recent sales prices of comparable properties on a price per square metre basis, adjusted for a
premium or a discount specific to the quality of the Group's buildings compared to the recent sales
and the timing on the comparable transactions. Higher premium for higher quality buildings and a
favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable transaction will result in higher fair value
measurement. .
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14. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for vari
its operations. Lump sum payments w
with lease terms of 50 years, and no on

leases. Leases of buildings, equipment and others generally have lease terms
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

ous items of land and buildings, equipment and others used in
ere made upfront to acquire the land lease from the owners
going payments will be made under the terms of these land

between 2 and 3 years.

The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and movements during the year are
g P giney

as follows:

At 1 January 2022
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge
Write-back on disposals
Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Write-back on disposals

Exchange realignment

As at 31 December 2023
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Prepaid
land lease Equipment
payments Buildings and others Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
98,141 6,231 - 104,372
- 7,166 - 7,166
- (25,627) (555) ( 26,182)
( 3,043)  (10,200) - (13,243)
- 25,627 555 26,182
(8283 ( 177 - ( 8,460)
86,815 3,020 - 89,835
- 11,003 - 11,003
- ( 8,331 - ( 8331
(2,874 (7,181 - ( 10,055)
- 8,331 - 8,331
(2251) (32 - 2,283)
81,690 6,810 - 88,500
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14. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
)] Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities and movements during the year are as

follows:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount at 1 January 3,007 6,402
New leases 11,003 7,166
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 353 602
Payments ( 7,485) (10,931)
Exchange realignment (. 23) (232
Carrying amount at 31 December 6,855 3,007
Analysed into:
Current portion 5,412 2,656
Non-current portion 1,443 351
Carrying amount at 31 December 6,855 3,007
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as below:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 7) 353 602
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 10,055 13,243
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in "Administrative and other
operating expenses") 1,258 4,188
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 11,666 18,033

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 31(c) to the financial statements.
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14.

15.

LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its investment properties (note 13), consisting of one commercial
investment property in the PRC. The shop had been rented out for a period of 6 years from 1
November 2019 under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the lease generally require the
tenant to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$87,000 (2022:
HK$86,000).

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivables by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating lease with its tenant are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HKS$'000

Within 1 year 162 507
After 1 year but within 5 years 73 1,836
235 2,343

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Concession Patentsand  Computer Customer
rights trademarks  software relationships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$000  HKS$'000
31 December 2023
Cost:
At 1 January 2023 2,929,442 24,335 10,321 12,444 2,976,542
Additions - - 1,636 - 1,636
Disposals ( 2,852) - ( 1) - (0 2,853)
Exchange realignment ( 77,554) ( 645) (301 ( 330) ( 78,830)
At 31 December 2023 2,849,036 23,690 11,655 12,114 2,896,495
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment:
At 1 January 2023 566,157 24,335 4,987 11,200 606,679
Amortisation provided during the year 148,032 - 1,377 1,232 150,641
Exchange realignment ( 15,733) ( 645) ( 155) ( 318) ( 16,851
At 31 December 2023 698,456 23,690 6,209 12,114 740,469
Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023 2,150,580 - 5,446 - 2,156,026
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15.

31 December 2022

Cost:
At 1 January 2022
Additions
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment:
At 1 January 2022

Amortisation provided during the year
Impairment provided during the year

Exchange realignment
At 31 December 2022

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2022

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Concession Patentsand Computer ~ Customer
rights trademarks  software relationships Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
488,271 - 1,670 - 489,941
( 253,839 (2283 ( 897 ( 1,168) ( 258,187)
2,929,442 24,335 10,321 12,444 2,976,542
423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,868
173,364 - 1,258 2,609 177,231
14,230 - - - 14,230
( 45,014) (2,283) (415 ( 938) ( 48,650)
566,157 24,335 4,987 11,200 606,679
2,363,285 - 5,334 1,244 2,369,863

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water

projects (comprising concession rights of i

ntangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)

with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$5,550,547,000 (2022: HK$5,678,281,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 25, 26 and 32 to the financial statements.

16. GOODWILL

Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January

Exchange realignment

Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December

2023
HK$'000

1,400,952
( 36,859)

1,364,093
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2022
HK$'000

1,531,576
( 130,624)

1,400,952
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16.

17.

GOODWILL (continued)

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable mainly to the expected synergies from

combining operations of the acquiree and acquirer. None of the goodwill acquired is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes.

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the water environment
management segment.

The recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units within the water environment
management segment was determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period using a growth rate of 3% to 10%
(2022: 3% to 10%) approved by management. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections was 11.4% (2022: 1 1.3%), and cash flows beyond the five-year period were extrapolated
using a growth rate of 2.5% (2022: 2.5%). Management determined the budgets based on service
concession arrangements governing the relevant operations. Based on the assessment, no
impairment provision was necessary as at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets 11,953 11,094

Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:

Percentage of

ownership

Place of interest
Particulars of registration atiributable Principal
Name capital and business to the Group activities
Qingdao Haibohe Water Paid up PRC/ 49 Waste water
Operating Limited capital of United Mainland treatment

States dollars China
("US$") 350,845

EW Data Intelligent Paid up PRC/ 40 Intelligent
Operation (Shenzhen) capital of Mainland water system
Limited RMB1,000,000 China development and

intelligent water
project operation

As at 31 December 2023, the above investments were held by the Company's subsidiaries.
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

2023 2022
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Share of net assets 1,262 -

Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows:

Percentage of

ownership

Place of interest
Particulars of registration attributable Principal
Name capital and business to the Group activities
JV Sotravic - St Martin Paid up capital of Mauritius 50 Waste water
Partner Limited Mauritius Rupee treatment

10,000

As at 31 December 2023, the above investment was held by the Company's subsidiary.

19. CONTRACT ASSETS

31 December 31 December 1 Janvary
2023 2022 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current
Service concession assets (@) 19,798,284 19,094,999 19,766,155
Less: Impairment (©) ( 18,573) ( 17,886) ( 15,831)
Total - non-current 19,779,711 19,077,113 19,750,324
Current
Service concession assets (a) 2,005,427 1,953,883 1,949,143
Less: Impairment (c) ( 1,881) ( 1,830) ( 1,561)
2,003,546 1,952,053 1,947,582
Other contract assets -(b) 154,160 58,340 42,884
Total - current 2,157,706 2,010,393 1,990,466
Total 21,937,417 21,087,506 21,740,790
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a) Included in "Service concession assets" as at 31 December 2023 are amounts of

(b)

©

HK$769,354,000 (2022: HK$525,427,000) and HK$73 1,752,000 (2022: HK$704,322,000)
which are due from a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary and a
related company of a non wholly-owned subsidiary, respectively.

Service concession assets as at 31 December 2023 totalling HK$21,803,711,000 (2022:
HK$21,048,882,000) bear interest at rates ranging from 4.20% to 7.83% (2022: 4.40% to
7.83%) per annum. As at 31 December 2023, HK$20,364,924,000 (2022:
HK$17,360,843,000) related to the service concession arrangements with operation
commenced. The amounts for the service concession arrangements are not yet due for
payment and will be settled by revenue to be generated during the operating periods of the

service concession arrangements. Amounts billed will be transferred to trade receivables (note
21).

The balance comprised contract assets arising from performance under construction
management service contracts. Such contracts include payment schedules which require stage
payments over the service periods once milestones are reached.

Impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2023, HK$20,454,000 (2022: HK$19,716,000) was recognised as an
allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and credit

policy with customers are disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

The movements in the provision for impairment of contract assets are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of year 19,716 17,392

Impairment losses recognised {note 8) 1,282 4,002
Exchange realignment ( 544) ( 1,678)

At the end of year 20,454 19,716

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using the probability of default
approach to measure expected credit losses. The probabilities of default rates are estimated
based on comparable entities with published credit ratings. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forward-looking credit risk information. As at31 December 2023, the probability of default
applied ranging from 0.05% to 0.53% (2022: 0.05% to 0.12%) and the loss given default was
estimated ranging from 59.93% to 64.90% (2022: 57.70% to 64.90%).
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19.

20.

CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HKS$5,550,547,000 (2022: HK$5,678,281,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 25, 26 and 32 to the financial statements.

INVENTORIES
2023 2022
. HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials and consumables 58,336 85,820

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in profit or loss is
as follows:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Carrying amount of inventories consumed 966,843 991,870
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21.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Non-current
Other receivables
Less: Impairment

VAT receivables
Prepayments

Total - non-current
Current

Trade receivables
Less: Impairment

Other receivables and sundry deposits
Less: Impairment

VAT receivables
Amounts due from an associate
Prepayments

Total - current

Total

2023
HK$'000

22,869

( 9,782)

13,087

193,824

28,214

235,125

5,060,763

( 626,215)

4,434,548

636,027

( 29,187)

606,840

121,805
6,329

213,239
5,382,761

5,617,886

2022
HK$'000

304,462

( 33354)

271,108

285,046

556,154

3,808,432

( 446,835)

3,361,597

126,497

( 17,516)

108,981

165,655
9,365

122,104
3,767,702

4,323,856

The amounts due from an associate are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-bearing at a

rate of 4.75% (2022: 4.75%) per annum.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of year 446,835 252,045

Impairment losses recognised, net (note 8) 194,487 226,899
Exchange realignment ( 15,107) ( 32,109)

At the end of year 626,215 446,835

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses of other receivables are as follows:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of year 50,870 20,350

Impairment losses recognised, net (note 8) 466 33,829

Write-offs (11,200) -
Exchange realignment ( 1,167) ( 3,309)

At the end of the year 38,969 50,870

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Trade receivables mainly
represent revenue from the provision of operation services and the billed amounts of the contract
assets. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group has applied the simplified app

roach for providing impairment for ECLs prescribed by

HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To

measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been groupe
the days past due. The ECLs below also incorporate fo

was determined as follows:

d based on shared credit risk characteristics and
rward looking information. The impairment

Past due
more than
Past due 1 year but Past due
within within over
Current 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
31 December 2023:
Expected loss rate 7.5% 7.2% 17.0% 38.2% 12.4%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 1,060,050 2,518,405 945,504 536,804 5,060,763
Impairment (HK$'000) 79,462 180,946 161,000 204,807% 626,215
31 December 2022:
Expected loss rate 7.1% 5.7% 25.8% 62.6% 11.7%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 898,591 2,208,766 492,460 208,615 3,808,432
Impairment (HK$'000) 63,597 125,733 126,867" 130,638% 446,835
A The impairment included an amount of HK$30,037,000 (2022: HK$19,408,000) made for specific trade

receivables which were considered in default due to indicators which showed that the Group was

unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full.

* The impairment included an amount of HK$123,845,000 (2022: HK$111,997,000) made for specific

trade receivables which were considered in default due to indicators w
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full.

hich showed that the Group was

Included in "Trade and other receivables" of the Group as at 31 December 2023 were trade

receivables of HK$4,434,548,000 (2022: HK$3,361,597,00

0), of which (a) HK$60,554,000 (2022:

Nil) were due from a non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary, and (b)
HK$22,735,000 (2022: HK$13,963,000) were due from a related company of a non wholly-owned

subsidiary.
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22.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in "Other receivables and sundry deposits" of the Group as at 31 December 2023 were (a)
government compensation receivables of HK$274,126,000 (2022: HK$281,585,000) arising from the
disposals of service concession arrangement-telated intangible assets and contract assets in connection
to relocation and expansion of waste water treatment plants of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited, for
which impairment of HK$11,079,000 (2022: HK$22,105,000) was provided as at 31 December 2023.
The amount will be settled before 31 December 2024; (b) government compensation receivables of
HK$205,380,000 (2022: Nil) arising from the termination of the added 13 subprojects of Everbright
River Basin Remediation (Nanjing) Limited, for which impairment of HK$12,050,000 (2022: Nil) was
provided as at 31 December 2023; (c) government compensation receivables of HK$26,751,000
(2022: HK$26,508,000) arising from compensation of sludge disposal cost as stipulated in the
concession service agreement of Everbright Water (Beijing) Limited; (d) security deposits paid of
HK$21,756,000 (2022: HK$22,348,000) for the Tongxiang West Area Drinking Water Sources
Protection PPP Project, for which impairment of HK$9,782,000 (2022: HK$1 1,249,000) was provided
as at 31 December 2023; and (e) consideration receivables of HK$4,514,000 (2022: HK$6,394,000)
due from third parties arising from the disposals of service concession rights held by Sugian City
Cheng Bei Water Treatment Co., Ltd. and Sugian City Cheng Bei Wastewater Treatment Co., Ltd.
years ago, for which impairment of HK$1,309,000 (2022: HK$2,283,000) was provided as at 31
December 2023.

Included in "Prepayments" as at 31 December 2023 were partial payment of HK$28,214,000 (2022:
Nil) for extending the term of a service concession right of a project.

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's concession rights of the environmental water
projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and trade receivables)
with an aggregate carrying amount of HKS$5,550,547,000 (2022: HK$5,678,281,000) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and the issuance of ABS, further details of which
are included in notes 25, 26 and 32 to the financial statements.

All the current portions of the above balances are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted investments, at fair value 88,150 186,219
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 32,998 35,498
Total 121,148 221,717

The above unlisted investments were wealth management products issued by a financial institution
in Hong Kong and the above unlisted equity investment represents the 6% equity interest in
Yancheng CCCC Shanghai Dredging Water Environment Investment Co., Ltd. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at FVPL as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.
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23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023 2022

HK$'000 HKS$'000

Cash on hand and bank balances 1,861,907 2,844,990
Restricted bank balances 19,494 917
Total 1,881,401 2,845,907

As at 31 December 2023, restricted bank balances are pledged to banks for the issuance of
guarantees by the banks to the grantors in respect of the specific performance duties by the Group
under certain services concession agreements.

Included in "Cash and cash equivalents" of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are deposits of
HK$84,485,000 (2022: HK$105,290,000) placed with a related party bank, which is a fellow
subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounting to HK$1,820,452,000
(2022: HK$2,701,367,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC. The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business. The remittance of funds in and out of Mainland China is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

As at 31 December 2023, cash at banks of the Group were considered to be of low credit risk, and

thus the Group has assessed that the ECL for cash at banks is immaterial under the 12-month
expected losses method.
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24.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade payables 2,335,983 2,278,842

Distribution payable to holders of perpetual capital instruments 25,128 13,672
Dividend payable to a non-controlling shareholder of

a non wholly-owned subsidiary 5,835 5,364

Interest payable 155,216 128,912

VAT and other tax payables 176,442 31,144

Other creditors and accrued expenses 543,132 710,178

Total 3,241,736 3,168,112

Trade payables totalling HK$1 ,864,144,000 (2022: HK$1,653,099,000) as at 31 December 2023
represent construction payables for the Group's BOT, BOO and TOT arrangements. The
construction payables are not yet due for payment.

Included in "Trade payables" of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are trade payables of
HK$69,745,000 (2022: HK$67,617,000) due to non-controlling shareholders of non wholly-owned
subsidiaries, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit terms similar to those offered
by the non-controlling shareholders to their major customers.

Included in "Trade payables" of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are trade payables of
HK$3,752,000 (2022: HK$4,816,000) due to an associate, which are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on credit terms similar to those offered by the associate to its major customers.

Included in "Other creditors and accrued expenses" of the Group as at 31 December 2023 are other
payables of HK$215,3 85,000 (2022: HK$215,053,000) due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
non wholly-owned subsidiary, which are unsecured, interest-bearing at the rates announced by the
People's Bank of China and repayable on demand.

Included in "Other creditors and accrued expenses" of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was a
guarantee deposit of HK$14,229,000 from a former director of a subsidiary.
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2023 2022
Maturity HK$'000 Maturity HK$'000
Non-current
Bank loans - secured 2025 - 2039 2,426,280 2024 - 2039 1,954,369
Bank loans - unsecured 2025 - 2043 3,483,128 2024 - 2037 4,605,701

Bonds payable - unsecured (note 26) 2025 - 2026 4,889,072 2024 - 2025 3,015,630

Total - non-current 10,798,480 9,575,700
Current
Bank loans - secured 2024 218,916 2023 183,105
Bank loans - unsecured 2024 2,543,566 2023 2,236,241
Bonds payable - secured (note 26) - 2023 154,202
Bonds payable - unsecured (note 26) 2024 1,844,411 2023 3,112,887
Total - current 4,606,893 5,686,435
Total 15,405,373 15,262,135
2023 2022
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Analysed into:
Borrowings repayable:
Within one year or on demand 4,606,893 5,686,435
In the second year 2,240,121 3,767,538
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 5,977,424 3,326,368
Beyond five years 2,580,935 2,481,794
Total 15,405,373 15,262,135
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25.

BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2023, certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by certain revenue,
contract assets, receivables and intangible assets in connection with the Group's service concession
arrangements and the equity interests in certain subsidiaries of the Group. Such banking facilities,
amounting to HK$2,919,175,000 (2022: HK$3,154,472,000), were utilised to the extent of
HK$2,645,196,000 (2022: HK$2,137,474,000) at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the unsecured banking facilities, amounting to HK$7,356,294,000 (2022:
HK$9,718,867,000), were utilised to the extent of HK$6,026,694,000 (2022: HK$6,841,942,000).
Among the unsecured banking facilities of the Group, HK$734,139,000 (2022: HK$1,232,109,000)
are guaranteed by the Company and were utilised to the extent of HK$363,150,000 (2022:
HK$698,544,000) as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, banking facilities of HK$5,927,696,000 (2022: HK$6,586,105,000) are
subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's financial ratios. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. At31
December 2023, such facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$4,909,540,000 (2022:
HKS$5,354,348,000). The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Certain
banking facilities also restrict some of the Company's subsidiaries from declaring or paying
dividends to shareholders without obtaining prior written approval of the banks or require the Group
to process waste water treatment operating fee via respective financial institutions. Further details
of the Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's bank loans of HK$8,454,330,000 (2022: HK$8,979,416,000)
bear interest at variable rates ranging from 2.80% to 7.02% (2022: 1.72% to 5.94%) per annum,
bank loans of HK$217,560,000 (2022: Nil) bear interest at a fixed rate of 3.35% per annum, and
bonds payable of HK$6,733,483,000 (2022: HK$6,282,719,000) bear interest at fixed rates ranging
from 2.82% to 3.75% (2022: 1.72% to 3.99%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's bank loans of nil (2022: HK$411,553,000) are denominated in
US$, HK$6,529,009,000 (2022: HK$5,002,452,000) are denominated in RMB, HK$25,207,000
(2022: HK$197,215,000) are denominated in Euro ("EUR"), and HK$2,117,674,000 (2022:
HK$3,368,196,000) are denominated in HK$.
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26.

BONDS PAYABLE
2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current
Corporate bonds - unsecured - 782,227
MTN - unsecured 4,889,072 2,233,403
Total - non-current 4,889,072 3,015,630
Current
ABS - secured - 154,202
Corporate bonds - unsecured 761,506 881,127
MTN - unsecured 1,082,905 1,114,360
SCP - unsecured - 1,117,400
Total - current 1,844,411 3,267,089
Total 6,733,483 6,282,719

In April 2020, the Company received a notice of registration acceptance issued by National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the People's Republic of China in respect
of the RMB-denominated MTN, with registered amount of RMBS3 billion, effective for two years
since the notice was issued. On 4 August 2020, the Company issued the first tranche of RMB-
denominated MTN with a principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of
RMB3,704,000, with an interest rate at 3.60% per annum, and a maturity period of three years from
the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from 5 August 2020 and up to the redemption
date. The Company has repaid the principal and interest of the first tranche of RMB-denominated
MTN in August 2023.

In January 2021, the Company issued the second tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a
principal amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest rate
at 3.75% per annum and a maturity period of three years from the issuance date. The interest shall
be paid annually from January 2021 and up to the redemption date.

In April 2022, the Company issued the third tranche of RMB-denominated MTN with a principal
amount of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest rate at 3.10%
per annum and a maturity period of three years from the issuance date. The interest shall be paid
annually from April 2022 and up to the redemption date. In September 2022, the Company issued
the third tranche of RMB-denominated SCP of RMBI billion, with an interest rate at 1.72% per
annum and redemption date of 18 March 2023. The Company has repaid the principal and interest
of the third tranche of RMB-denominated SCP in March 2023.
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BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

In March 2023, the Company received a notice of registration acceptance issued by National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the People's Republic of China in respect
of MTN, with a registered principal amount of RMB5 billion, effective for two years since the
notice was issued. On 17 April 2023, the Company issued the 2023 first tranche of RMB-
denominated MTN of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest
rate at 3.20% per annum, and a maturity period of five years from the issuance date. The interest
shall be paid annually from April 2023 and up to the redemption date. On 17 July 2023, the
Company issued the 2023 second tranche of RMB-denominated MTN of RMBI1.5 billion, before
related expenses of RMB4,500,000, with an interest rate at 2.97% per annum, and a maturity period
of five years from the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from July 2023 and up to
the redemption date. On 23 August 2023, the Company issued the 2023 third tranche of RMB-
denominated MTN of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest
rate at 2.82% per annum, and a maturity period of five years from the issuance date. The interest
shall be paid annually from August 2023 and up to the redemption date. On 9 March 2023, the
Company issued the 2023 first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP of RMB1 billion, with an interest
rate at 2.60% per annum and redemption date of 5 September 2023. The interest shall be paid on the
redemption date together with the principal. The Company has repaid the principal and interest of
the 2023 first tranche of RMB-denominated SCP in September 2023.

The Company submitted the application to the Shanghai Stock Exchange ("SSE") on 28 November
2019 for a possible issuance of ABS by Everbright Water (Shenzhen) Limited ("Shenzhen Water"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to qualified investors in the PRC pursuant to an asset-
backed securities scheme (the "Scheme"). On 26 March 2020, the SSE issued a no-objection letter
(the "No-objection Letter") confirming that it had no objections to the potential issuance of ABS.
Pursuant to the No-objection Letter, the issuance size of the ABS shall not be more than RMB300
million and the issuance of ABS shall be completed within 12 months from the date of the No-
objection Letter.

On 17 June 2020, the ABS were successfully issued with total amount of RMB300 million, of which
the preference ABS amounting to RMB285 million were subscribed by qualified investors in the
PRC and the subordinate ABS amounting to RMB15 million was subscribed by Shenzhen Water.

The original beneficiary of the securities is Shenzhen Water. The underlying assets of the ABS are
the rights, of three project companies in Liaoning Province in relation to four waste water treatment
projects, to receive waste water treatment fees during a specific period of five years starting from 1
March 2020. The relevant project companies have pledged part of the underlying assets in favour of
the Scheme.

The preference ABS are classified into five classes based on the maturity dates of such preference
ABS, comprising:

(a) Preference ABS 01 of RMB50,000,000 ("Preference ABS 1y
)] Preference ABS 02 of RMB54,500,000 ("Preference ABS 2");
(©) Preference ABS 03 of RMB57,000,000 ("Preference ABS 3");
(d) Preference ABS 04 of RMB60,500,000 ("Preference ABS 4"); and
(e) Preference ABS 05 of RMB63,000,000 ("Preference ABS 5").
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BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

The principal and interest of the preference ABS are repayable pursuant to the repayment schedule
of the Scheme, with interest rates ranging from 3.38% to 3.99% per annum. The Company has the
option to adjust the interest rate of Preference ABS 4 and Preference ABS 5 before 26 March 2023
("The 12th Repayment Date"), to increase or decrease interest rate of no more than 200 base points
(1 base point equals to 0.01%). The holders of Preference ABS 4 and Preference ABS 5 have an
option to sell back the notes to the original beneficiary at the nominal price, and the exercisable
period of this option is from the 26th day before The 12th Repayment Date to the 17th day before
The 12th Repayment Date.

In 2023, the Company repaid all the remaining principal of RMB138,000,000.

On 21 July 2017, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with the relevant financial
institution in relation to the issue of RMB-denominated corporate bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of not exceeding RMB2.5 billion (the "Corporate Bond") to the qualified investors in the
PRC.

On 16 August 2018 (the "Second Issue Date"), the Company issued the second tranche of the
Corporate Bond with principal amount of RMB800 million, before related expenses of
RMB4,171,000, with a maturity period of five years from the Second Issue Date. The second
tranche of the Corporate Bond comprises two types of bonds: (i) bonds with principal amount of
RMB400 million which bear interest at a rate of 4.60% per annum, and (ii) bonds with principal
amount of RMB400 million which bear interest at a rate of 4.58% per annum. The interest will be
repayable by the Company annually from the Second Issue Date and up to the maturity date.
According to the terms of the Corporate Bond, after three years from the Second Issue Date, the
Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond for the
remaining two years before the maturity date. The Company will announce the adjustment in
interest rate, if any, 20 working days prior to the payment of the interest for the third year after the
Second Tssue Date. The bondholders have an option to sell back the second tranche of the Corporate
Bond to the Company at the nominal price, and the exercisable period of this option is five working
days immediately after the issuance of the Company's announcement related to the adjustment in
interest rate of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond.

In July 2021, the Company announced the adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the first type
of the second tranche of the Corporate Bond from 4.60% per annum to 3.20% per annum for the
period from 16 August 2021 to 15 August 2023. In July 2021, the Company announced the
adjustment of the interest rate in respect of the second type of the second tranche of the Corporate
Bond from 4.58% per annum to 3.20% per annum for the period from 16 August 2021 to 15 August
2023.

The Company repurchased the first type of second tranche of the Corporate Bond fotaling
RMB79,100,000, of which RMB?70,000,000 had been resold and the remaining RMB9,100,000 had
been cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2021. The Company repurchased the second
type of second tranche of the Corporate Bond totaling RMB183,050,000, of which

RMB 180,000,000 had been resold and the remaining RMB3,050,000 had been cancelled during the
year ended 31 December 2021. The Company has repaid the principal and interest of the second
tranche of the Corporate Bond in August 2023.
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BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

On 21 January 2019 (the "Third Issue Date"), the Company issued the third tranche of the Corporate
Bond with principal amount of RMB700 million, before related expenses of RMB3,632,000, with a
maturity period of five years from the Third Issue Date. The third tranche of the Corporate Bond
bears interest at a rate of 3.89% per annum. The interest will be repayable by the Company annually
from the Third Issue Date and up to the maturity date. According to the terms of the Corporate
Bond, after three years from the Third Issue Date, the Company is entitled to adjust the interest rate
of the third tranche of the Corporate Bond for the remaining two years before the maturity date. The
Company will announce the adjustment in interest rate, if any, 20 working days prior to the payment
of the interest for the third year after the Third Issue Date. The bondholders have an option to sell
back the third tranche of the Corporate Bond to the Company at the nominal price, and the
exercisable period of this option is five working days immediately after the issuance of the
Company's announcement related to the adjustment in interest rate of the third tranche of the
Corporate Bond. In January 2022, the Company announced the adjustment of the interest rate in
respect of the third tranche of the Corporate Bond from 3.89% per annum to 3.08% per annum for
the period from 21 January 2022 to 20 January 2024.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Fair value

adjustments arising

from acquisition

of a subsidiary

HK$'000

At 1 January 2022 6,127
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (note 9) (2,462)
Exchange realignment ( 412)

At 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 3,253
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss (note 9) (2,326)
Exchange realignment ( 47

At 31 December 2023 880
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Deferred tax liabilities

Temporary
differences
Fair value on assets
adjustments recognised
arising from under Undistributed
acquisition of ~ HK(IFRIC)- profits of
subsidiaries Int 12 subsidiaries Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2022 175,918 1,475,181 412,668 (30) 2,063,737
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (note 9) ( 11,684) 28,755 55,254 - 72,325
Exchange realignment ( 19,885) ( 127,522) ( 37,968) 3 ( 185372)
At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023 144,349 1,376,414 429,954 @7 1,950,690
Deferred tax charged/(credited)
to profit or loss (note 9) { 10,528) 89,498 55,900 29 134,899
Exchange realignment ( 6,063) ( 37,252) ( 12,329) - ( 55,644)
At 31 December 2023 " 127,758 1,428,660 473,525 2 2,029,945

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately HK$329,763,000
(2022: HK$203,447,000) as at 31 December 2023 that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets in
respect of such tax losses arising in Mainland China have not been recognised as they have arisen in
certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007.
A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1 Januaty 2008.

There are no income fax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company fo its
shareholders.
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28.

29.

SHARE CAPITAL

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000

Authorised:
10,000,000,000 (2022: 10,000,000,000)
ordinary shares of par value of HK$1.00 each 10,000,000 10,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
2,860,876,723 (2022: 2,860,876,723)
ordinary shares of par value of HK$1.00 each 2,860,877 2,860,877

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(D

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the Company and foreign operations whose
functional currencies are different from the Group's presentation currency.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the People's Republic of China, the subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to allocate 10% of the statutory after-tax profits to the statutory reserve
until the cumulative total of the reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries' registered capital.
Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the statutory reserve may be used to
offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the subsidiaries. The
statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution to shareholders of the PRC
subsidiaries.

Contributed surplus reserve

Contributed surplus reserve arose from the reduction of share premium. Pursuant to the
special resolution at the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 15 December
2015, the entire amount standing to the credit of the Company's share premium was reduced
to nil and transferred to the contributed surplus reserve.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise capital reserve and other reserve.
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30.

31

PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENTS

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 806,982 -

Issuance of perpetual capital instruments - 806,982

Share of profit for the year 37,578 14,334
Distribution to holders of perpetual capital instruments ( 37,578) ( 14,334)

At 31 December 806,982 806,982

Tn June 2022, the Company issued a perpetual capital instrument with a principal amount of
RMB700,000,000. Net proceeds after deducting the issuance costs amounted to RMB697,900,000
(equivalent to HK$806,982,000). The distribution rate for the perpetual capital instrument is 3.30%
per annum for the first three years from the date of issuance, and subsequently the distribution rate
will be reset every three years.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(@ Major non-cash transactions

@) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the interest expenses on corporate bonds,
MTN and SCP of HK$144,462,000 (2022: HK$121,613,000) were not yet settled
by the Group, and recorded in "Trade and other payables” in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and have no cash flow
impact to the Group.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the distribution to holders of the first
tranche of perpetual capital instruments of HK$25,128,000 (2022: HK$13,672,000)
was not yet settled by the Group, and recorded in "Trade and other payables" in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and have no
cash flow impact to the Group.

(iii)  During the year ended 31 December 2023, the non-controlling shareholder of a non
wholly-owned subsidiary made capital contribution of HK$37,187,000 to the non
wholly-owned subsidiary by using dividends declared in 2023, and have no cash
flow impact to the Group.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

®

(c)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

At 1 January 2022

Changes from financing cash flows

Finance costs

Dividend declared to non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries

Foreign exchange movement

At 31 December 2022 and
1 January 2023
Changes from financing cash flows
Finance costs
Dividend declared to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (note a)
Capital contribution received by
a non wholly-owned subsidiary
from a non-controlling shareholder
(note a)
Foreign exchange movement

At 31 December 2023

Total cash outflow for leases

Dividend
payable
to non-

confrolling

shareholders

of non

Bonds Interest wholly-owned

Bank loans  payable payable  subsidiaries
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
9,091,739 5,350,199 125,637 -
267,952 1,574,448 (503,664) (17,573)

- - 544,013 -

- - - 22,219

( 380275)( 641,928) (37,074 718
8,979,416 6,282,719 128,912 5,364
( 133,352) 683,036 (550,329) -
- - 590,568 -

- - - 37,187

- - - (37,187)

( 174,174) ( 232,272) ( 13,935) 471
8,671,890 6,733,483 155,216 5,835

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement of cash flows is as

follows:

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

2023
HK$'000

1,258

7,485

75

2022
HK$'000

4,188
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32.

33.

34.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's ABS and banking facilities are included in
notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements. The aggregate net book values of assets amounted to
HK$5,550,547,000 (2022: HK$6,281,733,000) as at 31 December 2023.

COMMITMENTS

(a) The Group had the following commitments at the end of the reporting period:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Purchase commitments outstanding in connection with
the Group's construction contracts were as follows:
Contracted but not provided for 2,857,994 2,017,857

()] At 31 December 2023, the Group had an outstanding capital commitment of HK$22,711,000
(2022: HK$23,329,000) relating to the capital contribution to an unlisted equity investment.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party transactions during the year:

(a) The Group entered into the following related party transactions with non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group:

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue from project operation service 87,801 91,401
Finance income 12,790 15,161
Cost of construction service 26,805 182,205

(b) The Group entered into the following related party transactions with a related company of

the Group:
2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue from project operation service 120,642 119,038
Finance income 47,816 50,714
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34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(©)

(d)

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with associates of the

Group:
2023
HK$'000
Service expenses for operation of waste water
treatment plants 46,165
Technical operation service fee 42,981

2022
HK$'000

48,886

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with fellow subsidiaries of

the Group:
2023 2022
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Sales of equipment )] 11,509 -
Underwriting service fee (i) 8,962 1,722
Insurance expenses (iii) 2,844 3,038
Healthcare protection services expenses (iv) 14,615 17,779
Notes:
(i) The sales of equipment to fellow subsidiaries of the Group were conducted based on
mutually agreed terms.

(ii) The underwriting service fees were paid to a fellow subsidiary in connection to the
issuance of the MTN (2022: the issuance of perpetual capital instruments). The fees

were calculated pursuant to the relevant underwriting agreements.

(iii)  The insurance expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of the Group on

mutually agreed terms.

(iv)  The healthcare protection services expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of

the Group on mutually agreed terms.
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34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(e)

()

(2

Transactions with other stated-owned entities in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by enterprises directly or
indirectly owned and/or controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively "Other SOEs"). During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group had transactions with the Other SOEs including, but
not limited to the waste water treatment service, bank deposits and borrowings, and utilities
consumption. The directors of the Company consider that the transactions with the Other
SOEs are activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business, and that the dealings of
the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and the
Other SOEs are ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC government. The Group has
also established pricing policies for products and services and such pricing policies are not
carried out on non-market terms and do not depend on whether or not the customers are the
Other SOEs. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that none of these transactions is a material related party
transaction that would require separate disclosure.

The Group paid key management personnel compensation as follows:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000

Directors' fees, salaries and other short-term
employee benefit 20,684 23,027
Defined contribution plans 2,057 2,271
22,741 25,298

The Group has rental contracts with fellow subsidiaries of the Group. As at 31 December
2023, the Group's right-of-use assets relating to such rental contracts from fellow
subsidiaries of the Group amounted to HK$4,082,000 (2022: HK$2,572,000) and lease
liabilities of HK$4,076,000 (2022: HK$2,545,000) are due to fellow subsidiaries of the
Group.
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade
and other payables, current portion of other receivables, lease liabilities, and borrowings
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's financial management department is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
financial management department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit committee
twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of other receivables, lease liabilities, and borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group's own non-
performance risk for borrowings as at 31 December 2023 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted investments at FVPL are based on net asset value of the investees which
approximate to the fair value.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment at FVPL is based on the expected future cash flows of
the investment.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial instruments
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2023:

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input ~ Range value to the input
Unlisted equity Discounted cash Discount rate 2.8% 1% (2022: 1%) increase
investment at flow method (2022: 2.8%) (decrease) in discount rate
FVPL would result in
decrease in fair value
by HK$319,000

(2022: HK$110,000) or
increase in fair value
by HK$325,000

(2022: HK$111,000)
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35.

EAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial

instroments:
Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2023

Unlisted investments at FVPL
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL

As at 31 December 2022

Unlisted investments at FVPL
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices  Significant ~ Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
- 88,150 - 88,150
- - 32,998 32,998
- 88,150 32,998 121,148
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices  Significant ~ Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1)  (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
- 186,219 - 186,219
- - 35,498 35,498
- 186,219 35,498 221,717
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as follows:

2023 2022
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted equity investment at FVPL:
At 1 January 35,498 36,122
Fair value gain/(loss) (note 6) ( 1,586) 2,597
Exchange realignment ( 914) ( 3,221)
At 31 December 32,998 35,498

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2022: Nil).

81



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

36.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:
2023

Financial assets

Financial assets included in trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables
Borrowings

82

Financial

assets at Financial

amortised assets
cost at FVPL Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
5,060,804 - 5,060,804
- 121,148 121,148
1,881,401 - 1,881,401
6,942,205 121,148 7,063,353

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

HK$'000

2,897,784

15,405,373

18,303,157
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows: (continued)
2022

Financial assets

Financial assets included in trade and other receivables
Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities included in trade and other payables
Borrowings

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Financial

assets at Financial

amortised assets
cost at EVPL Total
HK$'000 HKX$'000 HK$'000
3,751,051 - 3,751,051
- 221,717 221,717
2,845,907 - 2,845,907
6,596,958 221,717 6,818,675

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

HKS$'000

2,909,074

15,262,135

18,171,209

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings and cash. The main purpose of

these financial instruments is to finance the Group's operati

ons. The Group has various other

financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, and trade and other payables,

which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group's cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings and balances with group companies. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

6] Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's net borrowings (being

interest-bearing financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and other interest-bearing
financial assets) at the end of the reporting period.

2023 2022
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% HX$'000 % HKS$'000
Net fixed rate borrowings/(deposits):
Borrowings 2.82-3.75 6,951,043 1.72-3.99 6,282,719
Less: Amount due from an associate 4.75 { 6,329) 475 ( 9,365)
6,944,714 6,273,354
Net variable rate borrowings/(deposits):
Borrowings 2.80-7.02 8,454,330 1.72-594 8,979,416
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 0.00-1.85 {( 1,881,401) 0.00-1.85 ( 2,845,907)
6,572,929 6,133,509
Total net borrowings 13,517,643 12,406,863

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2023, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of one percent in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase the Group's
profit before tax by approximately HK$135,176,000 (2022: HK$124,069,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit
before tax that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to remeasure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group's profit before tax is estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis was performed on the
same basis for 2022.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk
@A) Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from borrowings, cash and cash
equivalents, receivables and payables that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily HK$, RMB, US$, SGD and EUR.

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in HK$, translated using the spot rate at the end of
the reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation of the financia! statements of
foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in HK$)
At 31 December 2023
RMB SGD HK$ US$ EUR
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$'000

Cash and cash equivalents 16,833 2,522 17,044 15,246 -
Borrowings (163,170) - (1,917,694) - (25,207)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies, net (523,583) ( 55) 4,328,433 23 35,252
Trade and other payables ( 5,608) (1,301) ( 4,268) R ¢ 8)

(675,528) 1,166 2423515 15,269 10,037

Exposure to foreign currencies

(expressed in HK$)
At 31 December 2022

RMB SGD HK$ uss$ EUR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000

Cash and cash equivalents 62,736 10,098 248,533 53,997 -
Borrowings - - (2,172,925)  (411,553) (197,215)
Amounts due from/(to) group companies, net (694,383) ( 55) 3,312,305 23 34,832
Trade and other payables ( 4833) (2,119 ( 5738 ( 134) ( 151)

(636,480) 7,924 1,382,175  (357,667) (162,534)
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit before tax that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$ and the

US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the

US$ against other currencies. Except for those subsidiaries with their functional currencies
other than HKS, the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations with respect to the assets

and liabilities denominated in US$ is insignificant as the HKS is pegged to the USS.

As at 31 December

2023 2022
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) (decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit in foreign in profit
exchange rate before tax ~ exchange rate before tax
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
RMB 10 ( 67,553) 10 ( 63,648)
(10) 67,553 (10) 63,648
SGD 10 117 10 792
(10) ( 117 (10) ( 792)
HK$ 10 242,352 10 138,218
(10) (242,352) (10) (138,218)
US$ 10 23,119 10 ( 14,564)
(10) ( 23,119) 10) 14,564
EUR 10 1,004 10 ( 16,253)
(10) ( 1,004) (10) 16,253

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the

instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities' profit before tax measured in the

respective functional currencies, translated into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that
would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the
Group's presentation currency. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2022.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debts are usually due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.

Trade receivables of the Group represent receivables in respect of revenue from environmental
water project operation services which are settled on a monthly basis. In addition, the Group has
contract assets in respect of the BOT, TOT and certain BOO arrangements.

At the end of the reporting period, "Trade and other receivables" and "Contract assets" amounted to
HK$27,555,303,000 (2022: HK$25,411,362,000), of which HK$4,239,729,000 (2022:
HK$4,042,740,000) were due from the largest customer and HK$9,042,498,000 (2022:
HK$8,014,382,000) were due from the five largest customers in aggregate of the Group,
respectively. Since the parties to BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements are local government
authorities in the PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Management groups financial instruments on basis of shared credit risk characteristics, such as
instrument type and credit risk ratings for the purpose of determining significant increase in credit risk
and calculation of impairment. The carrying amounts of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets. .

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

To manage credit risk arising from trade receivables and contract assets, the credit quality of the
debtors is assessed, taking into account their financial position, historical settlement records, past
experience and other factors. The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. The ECLs also incorporated forward looking information.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, of whether a financial instrument's
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. The Group groups its other
receivables into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

Stage 1 When other receivables are first recognised, the Group recognised an allowance based on
12 months' ECL.

Stage 2 When other receivables have shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination,
the Group records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 Other receivables considered credit-impaired. The Group records an allowance for the
lifetime ECLs.

Management also makes periodic collective assessments for other receivables as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience and other factors. The Group classified other receivables in Stage 1 and continuously
monitored their credit risk. Management believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group's outstanding balance of other receivables as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2023, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited with creditworthy financial
institutions without significant credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from "Contract
assets" as well as "Trade and other receivables" are set out in notes 19 and 21 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaini

ng contractual maturities at the end of the reporting period of

the Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be required fo pay.

Financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Financial liabilities included in
trade and other payables

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

2023

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted lyearor butwithin butwithin More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$000
2,897,784 2,897,784 2,897,784 - - -
6,856 7,498 5,596 1,491 64 347
15,405,373 16,911,415 5,055,420 2,575,330 6,368,008 2,912,657
18,310,013 19,816,697 7,958,800 2,576,821 6,368,072 2,913,004

2022

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounted 1 yearor butwithin butwithin More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years S years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
2,909,074 2,909,074 2,909,074 - - -
3,007 3,580 2,733 382 65 400
15,262,135 16,706,762 5,970,717 4,080,570 3,756,098 2,899,377
18,174216 19,619,416 8,882,524 4,080,952 3,756,163 2,899,777

As at 31 December 2022, included in borrowings was ABS with a carrying amount of
HK$154,202,000, containing options to sell back the ABS to the Group. For the purpose of the
above maturity profile, the total contractual undiscounted cash flow amount of HK$155,115,000

related to ABS is presented as: HK$155,115,000 classified as repayable "within 1 year or on

demand" as at 31 December 2022.

The ABS would be due for repayment on the respective maturity dates unless being sold back to the

Group prior to the maturity pursuant to the terms of ABS. In accordance with the terms of the ABS,

the maturity terms as at 31 December 2022 are HK$70,907,000 in 2023, HK$89,816,000 in 2024 to

2025.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise
shareholders' value.

In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividend payment, issue new shares or obtain new borrowings. The Group's strategies are to
maintain a prudent balance between the advantage and flexibility afforded by a sound capital
position and the higher return on equity that is possible with greater leverage. There is no change in
capital management policies during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Consistently, the Group monitors capital based on a net debt against equity ratio. The net debt
against equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
liabilities (as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position of the Group, excluding lease
liabilities, tax payables and deferred tax liabilities) less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity
comprises share capital, reserves, perpetual capital instruments and non-controlling interests.

2023 2022

HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade and other payables - 3,241,736 3,168,112

Borrowings 15,405,373 15,262,135
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ( 1,881,401) ( 2,845,907)

Net debt 16,765,708 15,584,340

Total equity 13,452,342 13,000,878

Net debt against equity ratio 125% 120%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group's financial ratios as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, the Group does not
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

38.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

On § January 2024, the Company announced the completion of the issuance of China
Everbright Water Limited First Tranche Medium Term Notes 2024 (the "2024 First Tranche
MTN") on 4 January 2024 and 5 January 2024, which was fully subscribed for by
institutional investors in the national inter-bank bond market of Mainland China. The 2024
First Tranche MTN has a principal amount of RMBL.5 billion, with a maturity period of 5
year (with an interest rate adjustment option to be exercised by the Company and a resale
option to be exercised by the noteholders at the end of the third interest-bearing year) and an
interest rate of 2.80% per annum.

In April 2024, the Company announced the completion of asset-backed securities (the 2024
ABS™) to qualified institutional investors in Mainland China, with a principal amount of
RMB2 billion. The 2024 ABS comprises preference ABS and subordinate ABS. The
preference ABS amounting to RMB1.9 billion were subscribed by qualified investors in the
PRC and the subordinate ABS amounting to RMB100 million was subscribed by Shenzhen
Water. The preference ABS are classified into seven classes, with maturity periods ranging
from approximately 1 to 9 years, and interest rates ranging from 2.50% to 2.70% per annum.
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31 December 2023

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables

Other financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables
Borrowings

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
Share capital

Reserves

Perpetual capital instruments

TOTAL EQUITY
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2023 2022
HK$'000 HX$'000
10,023,114 10,618,932
10,505,695 9,611,167
88,150 186,219
42,470 98,085
10,636,315 9,895,471
183,082 145,880
3,624,164 4,634,455
3,807,246 4,780,335
6,829,069 5,115,136
16,852,183 15,734,068
6,049,733 4,772,482
10,802,450 10,961,586
2,860,877 2,860,877
7,134,591 7,293,727
9,995,463 10,154,604
806,982 806,982
10,802,450 10,961,586




CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Name

Anshan City Water Operating
Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Beijing EW Corporate Management
Co., Ltd. (deregistered on 18
January 2024)

Bio-Treat International Limited

China Everbright Water
International Pte. Ltd.

China Everbright Water
Investments Limited

China Everbright Water
Management Limited

Dalian Bonded Area EW Water
Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Dalian EW Chunliuhe Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (3) & note (4))

Dalian EW Malanhe Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (3) & note (4))

Dalian Pulandian Area EW Water
Co., Ltd.” (note (4))

EW Water (Dalian) Co., Ltd.”
(note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/
Mainland China

BVI

Singapore

BVI
Hong Kong
PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
10,000,000
RMB
1,200,000,000
US$

10,000

SGD
5,000,000

Uss$2
HK$100
RMB

10,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
66,500,000

RMB
120,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
- 100

- 100

- 100

100 -

100 -

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Business
management

Investment
holding

Investment
holding,
technology
R&D,
business
development
and
management
services

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Dalian Lvshun City Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dalian Lvshun Sanjianpu Waste
Water Treatment Co., Ltd.”
(note (4))

Dalian Siergou Water Co., Ltd."
(note (3) & note (4))

Dandong EW Waste Water
Treatment Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Dandong EW Water Co., Ltd."
(note (4))

Dezhou EW Environmental
Protection Limited"
(note (4))

Shenyang Hunnan EW Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (4))

Tongliao City Northern Waste
Water Treatment Co., Ltd."

(note (4))

Dalian Zhuanghe EW Water Co.,
Ltd." (note (4))

E+B Environmental Technology
(Nanjing) Co., Ltd’

E+B Umwelttechnik GmbH

Everbright Industrial Waste
Water Treatment Nanjing
Limited" (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/
Mainland China
PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Germany

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
13,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
30,000,000

RMB
10,000,000

RMB
80,000,000

RMB
48,000,000

RMB
10,000,000
RMB
60,000,000
RMB
10,000,000

EUR
13,000,000

EUR
100,000

RMB
507,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Construction
management

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

R&D and
consultation
on water
environmental
technologies

R&D

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Everbright Reusable Water
(Jiangyin) Limited"
(note (4))

Everbright Reusable Water
(Nanjing) Limited"

(note (4))

Everbright Water (Tongxiang)

Limited® (note (4))

Everbright Water (Nantong Haimen)

Limited {formerly known
as "Everbright Water

(Haimen) Limited")* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Huai'an)
Limited® (note (4))

Everbright River Basin
Remediation (Nanjing)
Limited’ (note (4))

Everbright Sponge City
Development (Zhenjiang)
Limited® (note (4))

Everbright Water (Beijing)
Limited® (note (4))

Everbright Water (Binzhou)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Boxing)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Dezhou)
Holdings Limited

Everbright Water (Dezhou)
Limited’ (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

US$
20,000,000

Uss$
11,700,000

RMB
270,000,000

RMB
70,000,000

Us$
20,000,000

RMB
92,000,000

RMB
462,000,000

RMB
119,310,000

RMB
95,061,700

HKS$
133,884,300

HK$100

Us$
12,280,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

- 100

- 100

- 79.9

- 100

100 -

70

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Reusable
water

Reusable
water

Construction
and operation
of wetland
ecological
engineering
project

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment

River
restoration
works

Sponge city
construction,
operation
and R&D

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage

incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities

Direct Indirect
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) PRC/ RMB - 70  Waste water
Limited* (note (4)) Mainland China 278,877,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Ji'nan Licheng) PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China 386,848,000 freatment
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Holdings Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment
Limited holding
Everbright Water (Changzhou) PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Limited’ (note (4)) Mainland China 183,365,200 treatment and
reusable water
EW (Zibo Zhangdian) Waste Water PRC/ US$ - 100  Waste water
Treatment Co., Ltd" (note (4)) Mainland China 4,925,000 treatment and
reusable water
EW (Ji'nan Tangye) Water Limited® PRC/ RMB - 99.9  Waste water
(note (4)) Mainland China 104,291,600 treatment and
reusable water
Everbright Water (Ji'nan) Limited” PRC/ US$ - 100 Waste water
(note (4)) Mainland China 106,246,600 treatment
Everbright Water (Ji'nan Zhangqiu) PRC/ RMB - 99  Waste water
Limited? (note (4)) Mainland China 85,200,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Juxian) Limited" PRC/ RMB - 100 Waste water
(note (4)) Mainland China 58,200,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Kunshan) PRC/ HKS$ - 100 Waste water
Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China 100,000,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Laiyang) PRC/ RMB - 90  Waste water
Limited* (note (4)) Mainland China 169,521,765 treatment
Everbright Water (Lianyungang) PRC/ HKS$ - 100  Waste water
Limited” (note (4)) Mainland China 157,150,387 freatment
Everbright Water (Lingxian) PRC/ US$ - 100  Waste water
Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China 22,140,200 treatment
Everbright Water (Nanjing PRC/ RMB - 100 Waste water
Limited" (note (4)) Mainland China 96,186,423 freatment
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Everbright Water (Nanning)
Limited ("EB Water
Nanning")* (note (3) & note (4))

Everbright Water (Qingdao)
Holdings Limited
("EW (Qingdao) Holdings")

Everbright Water (Qingdao)
Limited ("EB Water
Qingdao")* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Shenzhen)
Limited"

Everbright Water (Suzhou)
Limited* (note (4))

Everbright Water (Wuxi) Holdings
Limited

Everbright Water (Xianyang)
Limited”
(note (3) & note (4))

Everbright Water Operating
(Xinyi) Limited” (note (4))

Everbright Water Purification
Nanjing Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water Suizhou
Water Environment
Management Limited®
(note (4))

Everbright Water (Xinyi)
Limited" (note (4))

Everbright Water (Xuzhou)
Holdings Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong
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Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
488,690,000

HKS$
10,710,680

US$
89,561,700

HK$
10,000,000

HKS$
258,000,000

HK$100

RMB
94,000,000

Us$
19,496,300

RMB
14,750,000

RMB
260,000,000

HKS
174,590,000

HK$100

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

79.6 -
Note (1)

- 100

- 60
Note (2)

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 60.4

- 100

78.4 -

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

River
restoration
works

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Investment
and
management
of water
business

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
freatment

River
restoration
works

Waste water
treatment

Investment
holding



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage

incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities

Direct Indirect
EW Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB - 100 Leachate and
(Xuzhou) Co., Ltd.” Mainland China 15,438,000 waste water
treatment
Everbright Water (Yangzhou) PRC/ Us$ - 100  Waste water
Limited’ (note (4)) Mainland China 16,000,000 treatment
Everbright Water (Zhangqiu) PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Limited” (note (4)) Mainland China 30,349,700 treatment
Everbright Water (Zhanggiu) PRC/ RMB - 95  Waste water
Operating Limited” (note (4)) Mainland China 65,507,600 treatment and
operation
services
Everbright Water (Zibo Zhoucun) PRC/ HXS$ - 100  Waste water
Water Purification Co., Ltd.” Mainland China 153,240,000 treatment

(note (4))

Everbright Water (Zibo) Holdings Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Investment
Limited holding
Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited" PRC/ US$ - 100  Waste water
(note (4)) Mainland China 85,666,900 treatment
Everbright Water Technology PRC/ RMB - 100 R&D and
Development (Nanjing) Mainland China 50,090,000 consultation
Limited" on technology
Everbright Water Treatment PRC/ US$ - 100  Waste water
(Jiangyin) Limited" Mainland China 100,000,000 treatment and
(note (4)) construction
and
maintenance
of pipeline
network
Jiangsu Tongyong Environment PRC/ RMB - 100  Construction
Engineering Co., Ltd." Mainland China 55,080,000 engineering
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name

Ji'nan Everbright Water
Supply Limited®
{(note (4))

Ju County EW Water Limited’
(note (4))

Ju County EW Waste Water
Co., Ltd.” (note (4))

New Efficient Limited

Ocean Force International
Limited
Tianjin Binhai New Area Huantang

Sewage Treatment Co., Ltd."

Shaanxi Risheng New Energy
Technology Co., Ltd."

Ji'nan EW Environment Management
Limited*

EW Environmental Protection
(Huanghua) Co., Ltd.*
(note (4))

Shenzhen City EW Management
Limited Liability Company”

Oriental Fortune International
Limited

Panjin City Waste Water Treatment
Co., Ltd." (note (4))

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

BVI

BVI

PRC/

Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

PRC/
Mainland China

Hong Kong

PRC/
Mainland China

99

Issued
ordinary share/
registered
share capital

RMB
250,000,000

HKS$
83,130,000

RMB
31,523,400

US$100

US$!

RMB

10,000,000

RMB
20,000,000

USS$
35,000,000

RMB
69,286,190
RMB100

HK$10,000

RMB
44,000,000

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect

- 80

- 100

- 100

- 100

100 -

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal
activities

Water supply,
construction
and

operation of
water source
and water
supply facility

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Waste water
treatment and
reusable water

Investment
holding

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment

Solar energy
Waste water
freatment
Waste water
treatment
Business

management

Investment
holding

Waste water
treatment



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities
Direct Indirect
Sanmenxia Everbright Water PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Limited” (note (4)) Mainland China 22,000,000 treatment
Shenyang Dadong EW Water Co., PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Ltd.” (note (4)) Mainland China 13,000,000 treatment and
reusable water
Sugian City Cheng Bei PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Wastewater Treatment Mainland China 22,107,650 treatment
Co., Ltd."
Sugian City Cheng Bei Water PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Treatment Co., Ltd.” Mainland China 26,403,650 treatment
Tianjin Hanquan Environment PRC/ HKS$ - 100 Investment
Technology Limited* Mainland China 2,000,000 holding
Victor Best Holdings Limited BVI US$ 100 - Investment
50,000 holding
World Pioneer Investments Limited BVI US$100 - 100 Investment
holding
Xuzhou Municipal Engineering PRC/ RMB - 100 Survey,
Design Institute Co., Ltd." Mainland China 100,000,000 mapping,
design and
consultancy
for municipal
projecis
Zhuanghe City EW Waste Water PRC/ RMB - 95  Waste water
Treatment Co., Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 42,000,000 treatment
Zibo Everbright Water Energy PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Development Company Mainland China 51,350,000 source
Limited" (note (3) & note (4)) heat pump
EW Environmental Profection PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
(Yixing) Co., Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 100,000 treatment
EW Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
(Ji'nan Huaiyin Area) Co., Mainland China 106,527,680 treatment
Ltd.” (note (4))
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered attributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities
Direct Indirect
EW Environment Investment Korea South Korean - 100 Investment
Co., Ltd. Won holding
100,000,000

Linyi EW Water Co., Ltd.” PRC/ USS$ - 100  Waste water
(note (4)) Mainland China 32,000,000 treatment and

reusable water

Binzbou Hongsheng New PRC/ RMB - 100  Solar energy
Energy Technology Co., Ltd." Mainland China 7,000,000

Risheng New Energy PRC/ RMB - 100  Solar energy
Technology (Juxian) Co., Ltd." Mainland China 10,000,000

Ji'nan Zhanggiu Guangda PRC/ RMB - 100 Investment
Environment Management Mainland China 124,000,000 holding
Limited”

Ji'nan Zhanggiu EW Environment PRC/ RMB - 99  Waste water
Co., Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 123,919,500 treatment

EW Environmental Protection PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
(Jiangyin) Co., Ltd. Mainland China 10,000,000 treatment
(note (4))

EW Operation Environmental PRC/ RMB - 100  Waste water
Protection (Lianshui) Co., Mainland China 5,000,000 freatment
Ltd." (note (4))

EW (Anshan) Sludge Disposal PRC/ RMB - 100 Sludge
Co., Ltd." (note (4)) Mainland China 62,090,000 disposal

EW (Qingdao) Water PRC/ US$ - 100 Investment
Investment Co., Ltd." Mainland China 30,000,000 holding

Ji'nan Start-up Zone EW Waste PRC/ RMB 0.1 84.9  Waste water
Water Treatment Co., Mainland China 104,560,000 treatment
Ltd.” (note (4))

Yangzhou Hongsheng Risheng PRC/ RMB - 100  Solar energy
New Energy Technolog Mainland China 4,500,000
Co., Ltd.”

101



CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of Issued Percentage
incorporation/ ordinary share/ of equity
registration and registered atfributable to Principal
Name business  share capital the Company activities
Direct Indirect
Shaoguan EW Zhenghe PRC/ RMB - 60 Resource
Environmental Protection Mainland China 10,100,000 utilisation of
Technology Co., Ltd.” livestock and
poultry
manure,
production
and sales of
fertilisers, and
waste water
treatment and
reusable water
Risheng New Energy PRC/ RMB - 100 Solar energy
Technology (Zibo) Mainland China 6,000,000
Co., Ltd.”
EW Water (Liaocheng Shen PRC/ RMB 98 - Waste water
County) Co., Ltd.” Mainland China 220,000,000 treatment
(note (4))

Notes:

)

@

Registered under the laws of the PRC as private companies with limited liability
Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises
Registered under the laws of the PRC as Sino-foreign cooperative joint ventures

The Company is committed to contributing 79.6474% of EB Water Nanning's registered
capital. The remaining 20.3526% registered capital is contributed by three PRC joint
venture partners. Except for one of the PRC joint venture partners, who is committed to
contributing 0.0097% of registered capital and shall not be entitled to the net profit of EB
Water Nanning, the Company and other two PRC joint venture partners share the net profit
of EB Water Nanning on the basis of their respective proportion of registered capital
contribution.

EW (Qingdao) Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint
venture partner of EB Water Qingdao, is committed to contributing 60% of EB Water
Qingdao's registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital is contributed by a PRC
joint venture partner. EW (Qingdao) Holdings is fully entitled to the net profit of EB Water
Qingdao for the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From the 15th year of the joint
venture period onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao is to be shared by EW
(Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC joint venture partner on a 98:2 basis.
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CHINA EVERBRIGHT WATER LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2023

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

€))

“4)

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
Grantors. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements, the Group was granted rights to
construct, operate and maintain waste water treatment related projects in the PRC for a
period of 20 to 32 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain and restore the waste
water treatment related projects in good condition. The service fees are based on the extent
of services rendered and are subject to approvals from the relevant local government
authorities. Upon expiry of the concession periods, the waste water treatment related
projects and facilities will be transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. Both the Grantors and
the Group have the rights to terminate the agreements in the event of a material breach of
the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the waste water treatment related projects are recognised as "Intangible
assets" in the consolidated statement of financial position.

These subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
Grantors. Pursuant to the service concession arrangements, the Group has to design,
construct and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste water treatment related projects in the
PRC for a period of 10 to 32 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain the waste
water treatment related projects in good condition. The Grantors guarantee the Group will
receive minimum annual payments in connection with the arrangements. Upon expiry of
the concession periods, the waste water treatment related projects and facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. The standard rights of
the Grantors to terminate the agreements include failure of the Group to construct, upgrade
or operate the waste water treatment related projects and in the event of a material breach of
the terms of the agreements. The standard rights of the Group to terminate the agreements
include failure to receive payments for waste water treatment service from the Grantors and
in the event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in constructing or upgrading the waste
water treatment related projects is recognised as "Contract assets" in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 April 2024.
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Hofth LRI AT B R K 2 T HEAT VR4, RN ST EBRZ AW VP %N SR
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ZEIE TRy ot HiiA

AEWZE TG A MCSRBANTHERNEER, BN RAE. ZEEMRAETASE
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2023 2022
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RS E R 2 I 5l s 1,097,182 1,107,945
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WS H AT 1] :
FE—HE A 212,158 170,522
F—E A 5,395,344 5,449,500
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( 19)
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53,010
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1,019
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315,101

S T A A 7 R R0 BB A R PE Bl R 2 PR B3RV SR B B R 2 B S th 5445k b

BB HZ BN Z X KT

BB Z A

1 25% BRI E 2 B

FLIR =

BRI AR A 2 B AR U 2

BB ARAEE MR S B

i A N

AP X

FRHABLI 5 3R

AR BT iR

A4 B h E BB A B Al IR B R 2 BN f2

A AL H 2 B

41

2023
TG

1,666,123

416,531
( 222,363)
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( 37,471
181,186
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5.45 Al (Z{E 0.98 #191) ) 189,901
PURARR — EREE 5.81 ¥l (E
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11. ERER
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂéﬁﬁ&$ﬁﬂ&§%ﬁkm£$%ﬂ$¢§%ﬂmeumm%ﬁ(mniz
Umwﬁmmﬁﬁ)%u$ﬁﬂ$waﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁMﬁ$ﬁﬁ%z%mmumw&&mz$=%
2,860,877,000 %) iH.

B 2023 4E % 2022 4 12 A 31 FILAERE, AEBFTALNT CRATRISEME R0 2 TBie .

12.  ¥lk. TEEES

AEL
#*E. RER
B Z PAE
BT B2 BEE #& EEUWH B

Tt TG THIG TG TH#TT TR
ZE-=F+ZA=1T—H

BRAR
F-E-=%—H—H 659,601 336,734 17,659 109,397 83,045 1,207,336
BE - 1,189 1,965 6,094 44,831 54,079
L2274 24,762 90,386 - 40 (115,188)
nhE - ( 9) ( 142)  ( 4959 - (5110
bR ( 17,840) ( 10,459) ( 437 ( 2875 ( 1,041) ( 32,652)
FoFo=#FE+HA=1+—H 666,523 417,841 19,045 107,697 12,547 1,223,653
Eit¥rIR:
F-E-_=%—H—H 75,489 57,267 11,401 68,229 - 212,386
AEFETIA 20,729 18,439 1,203 11,400 - 51,771
WHE - ( 4) ( 142)  ( 4,750) - 4,896)
HIgTAE ( 2,300 ( 1,826) ( 258 ( 1,887) - ( 6271)
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TR A:
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nE - ( 575 ( 62) ( 4,039 - 4676)
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(
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ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%Zﬁﬁ\%ﬁ&M@,$£ﬁ§$ﬁ%$ﬁm2&ﬁ%MEﬁmﬁﬁ%ﬂo$%
@m&ﬁ%wa$mnﬁnzﬁnEﬁﬁ%ﬂEmmEWﬁ,Eﬁ%lm%mm%ﬁ(mn

4 11,398,000 70D o

BN SRS T REET S, il — SRR T WK 14,
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M. EFARRBTEEEREN. TR RIIRE R T T AR, WiHT R
B —ANRHE. BYERESREH TS TERABTRESE. ARERZFA. ki, M
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BN DU To A 45 SR T RO (AT I
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14. &
AERENARBA

AEFELESRPERT &R MBS, |EIIUMTARAE AL, FEACHEH K
PERTHAMER, CLEFTE EEERN AN L, TR LA R Ak, TomiE
AR B WA RSB OREIR— R EEZE. —RIERT, FEEAK
PR AL B DA A A ik R s H LA SRR

()  ERARE
A SR S AR B P (0 R T B B A 5 B R Bl I LA

ToAF Ak W&
TR By KHAh ot
T#x Tin  Tiuo  TH#x
FoZo-—4F—H—H 98,141 6,231 - 104,372
WE - 7,166 - 7,166
WE - (25,627) (555) ( 26,182)
IR ( 3,043)  (10,200) ( 13,243)
LR % - 25,627 555 26,182
CSLiAE (8283 ( 177 - ( 8,460)

FmEDHFAZA=ETHE

—Z-=4—H—H 86,815 3,020 - 89,835
ME - 11,003 - 11,003
AE - (833D - ( 833D
#IRX H (2,874) ( 7,181) - ( 10,055)
POy ik el - 8,331 - 8,331
IR (2251) ( 32 - 2.283)
FoE2-=F+=A=1+—H 81,690 6,810 - 88,500
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TR PN AT KSR T

MEHROFERA BHE D
AR B
WIS GEA 7B AL
et i
FHAE P HIAN S S8

S GRG0 L EE T SR 31(0)-

49

2023
T

3,007
11,003

353

( 7,485)
( 23

6,855

2023
THIG

353
10,055

1,258

11,666

2022
T

6,402
7,166
602
(10,931)
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3,007

2022
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602
13,243
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14. M &)
AEREHFAA
A B SRS TR S Rk (R 13) 5 &l BB A — bl Al 4l
R ZFECRIESEME HEM 20194 11 A 1 HiEHH 6 4. FAMFZK—BERAHA
TAHEES, FHRIE SRR SR MRS, AEFAREEFIAMFSEA T 87,000 %
I6 (2022 4E: 86,000 H#IG) -

F 2023412 A 31 B, AEBSAMATSIKATRHESSEREMIT, RRBARFTI

R AL FE RN T
2023 2022
F#TT T
—HELIN 162 507
—ERZHERN 73 1,836
235 2,343

15. T =

e BRI EERE  BERYE FPAXR B

TH#T THTT TG T THTT
ZE2o=8+-A=1—H

5%
FT-&_=%—H—H 2,929,442 24,335 10,321 12,444 2,976,542
HBE - - 1,636 - 1,636
B ( 2,852 - ( D - (0 2,853)
LS iR ( 77554) ( 645  ( 301) ( 330) ( 78830)
FoE2-=4+=-H=+—H 2,849,036 23,690 11,655 12,114 2,896,495
B R
Fo-g2_=%—H—H 566,157 24,335 4,987 11,200 606,679
ERNTEHEIRA 148,032 - 1,377 1,232 150,641
FIRZALE - ( 15733) ( 645) ( 155) ( 318) ( 16,851)
FoE==#+-RA=+—H 698,456 23,690 6,209 12,114 740,469
T T R
Fog-=F+-"H=1+—H 2,150,580 - 5,446 - 2,156,026
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15. TR (8

YA ER TRERE BRI  BESRR B
Fismw TR TG Tt THTG

—g- &+ -A=1T—H

A
F-g-——_F—H—H 2,695,010 26,618 9,548 13,612 2,744,788
WE 488,271 - 1,670 - 489,941
LR ( 253,839) (2283) (897 _(1168) ( 258,187)
Foz-—Ft+_-_HA=1+—H 2,929,442 24,335 10,321 12,444 2,976,542
S R
Fozo—#—H—H 423,577 26,618 4,144 9,529 463,368
FEREHRA 173,364 - 1,258 2,609 177,231
ENRELRE 14,230 - - - 14,230
IR ( 45014) (2283 ( 415 ( 938) ( 48,650)
Foz-—#+=-HA=+—H 566,157 24335 4,987 11,200 606,679
T T 79+EL -
Fog__H+=A=+—H 2,363,285 - 5,334 1,244 2,369,863

T 2023 4 12 A 31 B, AREBET KN E ZRHFEER (BEEREFEH RS ER. 64
B R MR T RN 5,550,547,000 #55G (2022 4E, 5,678,281,000 #75) CIEIENAEE
R AT B R RAT R P FRIE S i » HE—25 VB T W S IRR R 25, 26 K& 32.

16. WHE
2023 2022
FH#IT T
F— A—H A KK HHE 1,400,952 1,531,576
HITNIE ( 36,859) ( 130,624)
F+ A=+ —HRAKKEFE 1,364,093 1,400,952

7= 2 (T A AR T a5 S5 s 77 Bl 5 37 2 B U W IR e A R
BT
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16. A (8
EEZ AR
RETIRATE, BECHIREKFERALSE.
KIS VA T4 3 I 4= B G ARIR FNE DARE TS H EHEHER) 3% 10% (2022 FF: 3% %
10%) EEZRTEMTENYSHEZNEAETNE Lk E&H. SHTIRERETNH
BLalnZEh 11.4% (2022 4E: 113%) , LABE EHNRESRETSRAEKEE 2.5% (2022

£ 2.5%) FUIER. &8 ERIENSHAEENRSEFEENCHERTE. RI\ETE, T
2023 4F 12 A 31 AH B EHERER S (20224 1) .

17. BEE AR L

In

2023 2022
FHTT THI
B RE 11,953 11,094
AEHBE AT ZHERMT:
AEEH
Hick IVA=E RS
2 BAEE Bl WA FES
HEEIAMKEBE SERLT A hHE/ 49 VY G E
HRAH] 350,845 E 0 o [E P HE
NABEZE GEID SEEI R HE,/ 40 BEKEFRE
BIRAF AR 1,000,000 o [ py b FR K e
KEBHEE

F20234 1231 0, LhRBEmAATMBATEA.
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18. AEMSERE
2023 2022
FETT T
BT W E 1,262 -
AEFEGE SV FFWT:
A4EH
Bk M AR
2R BATEE E b Hh S NEAE S FEWSE
JV Sotravic - St Martin SEEER AR F B RN 50 F5K b
Partner Limited 10,000 S5 LB
F 20234 12 A31 B, FREFHAARMBARRTH.
19. HHHE”
2023 £E 2022 4 2022 4
12A31H 12H31H LA 1H
B T Tt T
|G
R L E R (a) 19,798,284 19,094,999 19,766,155
W WE (c) ( 18573) ( 17,886) (  15831)
S - JERIEA 19,779,711 19,077,113 19,750,324
Bp 38
RS TRE R (a) 2,005,427 1,953,883 1,949,143
W WAE © ( 1,881) ( 1,830) ( 1,561)
2,003,546 1,952,053 1,947,582
Hibh&4er= (b) 154,160 58,340 42,884
A - BRI 2,157,706 2,010,393 1,990,466
=k 21,937,417 21,087,506 21,740,790
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19.
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PHE -

(a)

(®)

©

F 20234 12 A 31 H, A [REFHTFELEE™] AFER—RFEER B AR —4
e IR AR A I B R — T A B B A A H—F LA R, 43BN 769,354,000 ¥
56 (2022 4F: 525,427,000 ¥75) K 731,752,000 #yt (2022 4. 704,322,000 I0)

T 20234 12 A 31 H, BEHUEE R AL 21,803,711,000 H70 (2022 4
21,048,882,000 3575) , HNIREFIEAT 4.20%% 7.83% (2022 4F: 4.40%% 7.83%) it
B. T 20234 12 A 31 H, SIHAEBRIRS I EE R AR
20,364,924,000 #7E (2022 4F: 17,360,843,00070) « M ASVIAESHAIGAR LY
A, WU B e g A B A R 247 DRSS HERE
R IRER (PR 21D o

g SRR BT RIS S HR S & AT A AT A NS TIRB R
F 1525 1P 4 WU AR IR AR 12K

IR

F 20234 12 A 31 H, 20,454,000 ¥70 (2022 4F: 19,716,000 WD) WAL H
B ERS RS . AERSES 13 5 S 2k B A RO TE M S5 IR B 21 Tz

A LR HRE R & 2T

2023 2022

T THTT
TEH 19,716 17,392
EPA R TR (Y 8 1,282 4,002
VORI ( 544) ( 1,678)
FHER 20,454 19,716

A4 TS AR BB RS AR R TR T DL EFEHE R TR, BARE
JLET DAE RIS R R AR AT T L E R YRR R . TR
AR TS B B A A A R A AT A B LA KR BR AR ATHE
ERRGEEE. T20234 12431 H, R 2 S RN T 0.05%% 0.53% (2022
fE. 0.05%Z 0.12%) o TilARERMETATF 59.93%ZE 64.90% (2022 : 57.70%%
64.90%) o
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19.  BHAE™ (8

F 20234 12 A 31 H, AEFAETKHETHZHFFELER (AEEEEFH IR TLER
AR R RIS R AEH 5,550,547,000 #T (2022 4F: 5,678,281,000 #570) CLIkHH
Ve R E AR AT R R R TR SR 2 i, i — R8T W 55 R aR IHE 25, 26 &

32,
20. fFIR
2023 2022
T T
JE 15 K FEA 58,336 85,820
DT HRRR DA HE RS T
2023 2022
Tt Tt
EFEARIR A 966,843 991,870
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BA - AERMN

B3
VLV el
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VAL ELEE]
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N
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2023
T

22,869

( 9,782)

13,087

193,824

28,214

235,125

5,060,763

( 626,215)

4,434,548

636,027

(29,187

606,840

121,805
6,329

213,239
5,382,761

5,617,886

2022
T

304,462

( 33,354)

271,108

285,046

556,154

3,808,432

( 446,835)

3,361,597

126,497

( 17,516)

108,981

165,655
9,365

122,104
3,767,702

4,323,856

i — (AL A B TUNTEIEI . FURELRIZIE FARERZ 4.75% (2022 4F: 4.75%) &,
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21, RiBORER & HABRIBGRI (20

RIBOK TR E T R % 2 2T -

2023 2022
T T
FEY] 446,835 252,045
EH AR TIREE (FHE 8) 194,487 226,899
VAL ( 15,107) ( 32,109)
FHEKR 626,215 446,835
HAb RSB E R T IR & 2RI T
2023 2022
TG Tt
TFHEH] 50,870 20,350
SR FRE TR E (FHE 8) 466 33,829
G (11,200) -
AL ( 1,167) ( 3,309)
FHER 38,969 50,870

Rl T 2 H IS 30 90 B, RISk EFROE B RS A B R B A B
FEL. ARG IZSHEROEAIRT .
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21.

FRISO 3k B HA RIS (52)

45 L R R 7 T B I SR Y 28 9 S LR (O BUAE S 5 B th ik, JUEVERIT
RIS A R B S Bk % . AT ETIERS 5, ARERRESUSRHE L E
TR IO RS 2. T ICHEME S T HIRANBTIETEGE . IR T

B3
T
2023 4F 12 A 31 H:
BulksHhE 7.5%
WHEBE P 1,060,050
WA CFHIT) 79,462
2022412 A 31 H:
Wit s HE 7.1%
W EE (FHEIo) 898,591
WBAE I 63,597

A A3 R R RIS 2R L AU 43 30,037,000 #57G (2022 4F: 19,408,000 570 HTFE

i
—4FH
THIT

7.2%
2,518,405
180,946

5.7%
2,208,766
125,733

s
—~4FET
PEN
T

17.0%
945,504
161,000"

25.8%
492,460
126,867

Sy
FEDLE R
T TR
38.2% 12.4%
536,804 5,060,763
204,807* 626,215
62.6% 11.7%

208,615 3,808,432
130,638* 446,835

B E T ABER T AR R R AR EHR, Moh e PR 94 .

* AL S S RSO 2P H I RAE 43 123,845,000 95T (2022 111,997,000 #J76) »
T4 %% BrAREB AT R Ek B R4 R, WA et e RO R AR v

45,

T 20234 12 A 31 A, ihAKRERZ (R Bl RBGK T ] B AERMUIIKK 4,434,548,000
WG (2022 4F: 3,361,597,000970) , HF (2) Rl — A AR 4 W IE A R — 4 JEIs R RS0
39 60,554,000 #57G (20224F: ) , K (b) Rl — AR A Y IR A B i — (A SR A 7 KN

22,735,000 #5750 (2022 4E: 13,963,000 #70) .
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21.

22,

JSLM R B A SR (452D

F2023 4 12 A 31 H, HAKERAZ [HABRBERTR RIS ] B (a) 274,126,000 HJG
(2022 45 281,585,000 375) MIBUFAMERIMGERT, KA AKS GHE) FRAFWT
B g KA B AN B S RS R 2 SR A R B R A AR T A . T 2023
£ 12 A 31 AHRREE &N 11,079,000 7T (2022 4E: 22,105,000 #570) « ZsKIUG T 2024
4 12 A 31 FIBT455E; (b) 205,380,000 ¥576 (20224F: 76) MIBURMEERMGRIL, 2K d e
SOTEESE (R BARAF L B EFEETSE. X 20234 12 A 31 BitRREREHN
12,050,000 5T (2022 4E: ) 5 (o) EYeAKS (b5 ARARMRESHFEERHNLEN
B RIS TR A B 222K 26,751,000 ¥76 (2022 4: 26,508,000 #70) ; (d) B £ Fa AKX H /KR
LR T FEBOF RIS B A AR T H T S ATAORIE S 21,756,000 7T (2022 4F: 22,348,000
I o« HTF 2023 4F 12 A 31 HiHRIRME R H 9,782,000 #76 (20224F: 11,249,000 #70)
B (¢) B ERTHMIKS KRG RAR BT TRt R RS PR ] B FeiRSS
BV 2R SIS = R R 4,514,000 375 (2022 4F: 6,394,000 5T) o HT 2023 4F 12 A 31
OiHERE TR &N 1,309,000 #E7T (2022 4F: 2,283,000 78D ©

F 20234 12 A 31 B, HAKERZ [FiAE0] SFERIAEE—ATE MRS HTFEE
BRI 2R 28,214,000 #iJ6 (2022 4F: 6D .

F20234E 12 A 31 B, AEFETKHETHZSFEER (BEIEEPHRSTEs

Ay e T RIOWER) FINET 2 A5A 5,550,547,000 7T (2022 4F: 5,678,281,000 #70) Tk
Ve A F AR TR R R IT BT RAE S 2 G, DR R T W SRR 25,26 &
32,

kg &z FrE BRI AR F—4F U E BB AT 3

HAh 4R~
2023 2022
Tt T
LA e tiE i ERdE L s (D 88,150 186,219
PLA oA R B TR A BT 32,998 35,498
A7 121,148 221,717

kAR R AR A E S SRI RAT IR S R T RAE AR A LRI
B AT PRA T 6% . TR = S BRI S ZA IR A AYMETE N IR ) SR B, BeTYH
THAAREREI IR A A L.
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N&RREENY
2023 2022
Tt FHET
BEHERERBRITER 1,861,907 2,844,990
ZIRBIRITER 19,494 917
JSE 1,881,401 2,845,907

T 20234 12 A 31 H, SREEFERCINTHRT, REEATETRSRFTFEERIEUN
T Hk 5 B 440 FAL T B AT A R B R

20234 12 B 31 H, HAKERZ [ERREEHY] BIEERT AR R RETR
7 COVAARIRZMBAT) 24750 84,485,000 575 (2022 4F: 105,290,000 3#75) -

F 2023 46 12 H 31 H, AERAFERT PEISRTHIE KIS0y 1,820,452,000 W

(20224 2,701,367,000 375) « ARFAFEE A H BT, 200, B EAH (SNE
ARy K (EIC. BILEHCEENED RAEF B R ER A E SN S 2 B ATHAR
T SR A R T . B R o [ Py A S FE T SE R AN o

BRI RETE, e ERREGHRTEREREE. RITERTIFRTER R
1 FR Wi R B A LR ZRAT .

T 20234 12 A 31 B, AEFRTEEREME R, Fik, AHERDHRE 1217 A7
S S THRT IR B R T PO E R,
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24,

JREASF I 3K B At A 5K

2023 2022

FHIT Tt
FPLATRER 2,335,983 2,278,842
MATKEER A T B AR 25,128 13,672
piATIEAE B A SRR R R R R 5,835 5,364
IDZREAlISH 155,216 128,912
REE R K oAl AT B 176,442 31,144
oAt R A 2R I K N B 543,132 710,178
ki 3,241,736 3,168,112

F 20234612 H 31 H, BiAIREKAE 1,864,144,000 #75 (2022 4E: 1,653,099,000 #70) A
£H BOT. BOO B TOT ZHF F 2 i TR, Bt TRERATER IR AR B AT

F20234 12 A 31 H, AKRERZ [RATRE] AFERNAEEE B A R AR R R
Rk 69,745,000 #75 (2022 4F: 67,617,000 375) , HIPSKIUATIHIN ., 4B A5 %R
R R T B B P RS SRR S .

F20234 12 A 31 H, itANFERZ [RfR] BFERMAT— MBS A 7 KR AKX 3,752,000
T (20224F: 4,816,000 970) , HIERTUATIRM. ARKFESEREARNRTHIEER

F RS FURA A E R EHEE

F20234E 12 A 31 B, AKRERZ [HAMSART R | SRR —RAEEEREL

F— % JEE MR AR 2R 2 Eo AR A 2RI 215,385,000 #E7G (2022 4F: 215,053,000 7T , HHREINR
RTCHEM ., b E A RSUT A ORI R B R AUEERERE.

F 2022412 A 31 H, HARERZ [HAGRATRB AR ] AEA—HREAR/M—4
AEEMIBEIE S 14,229,000 ¥ 7G.
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25. 55
2023 2022
FHH T FHHE T
3EENIA
AT — A 2025 4E-20304F 2,426,280 2024 4E-2039 4 1,954,369
HRAT R —CHT 2025 fE-2043 4 3,483,128 2024 4E-2037 4F 4,605,701

R —ICHEI (PRIE 26) 2025 4E-2026 5F 4,889,072 2024 5-2025 4 3,015,630

Mg - HERpHA 10,798,480 9,575,700
R HA

BT —A I 2023 4E 218,916 2023 4F 183,105
AT R — R 2023 4F 2,543,566 2023 4F 2,236,241
RiAHEF—E I (HE 26) - 2023 4 154,202
R EH IR (FE 26D 2023 4F 1,844,411 2023 4E 3,112,887
RE - B 4,606,893 5,686,435
= 15,405,373 15,262,135
2023 2022
Tt Tt

TN

=R AE T

—4E P BRAR B R 4,606,893 5,686,435
BB 2,240,121 3,767,538
BoERETE (AEERFRS 5,977,424 3,326,368
BHER 2,580,935 2,481,794
B 15,405,373 15,262,135
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25.

B (8

F 20234 12 A 31 A, AR THITRREE R UET 5 AL RS TR ER LRI
WS SR, BERRELRER, EAARETHBAR ZRBUEIRIT. T 2023 ¢
12 A 31 H, ZEMTIREEN 2,919,175,000 376 (2022 4F: 3,154,472,000 #50) , HhT
2023 4 12 B 31 HEE0 2,645,196,000 #70 (2022 4F: 2,137,474,000 #70) -

F 202346 12 A 31 0, FIRMEUTIERERS N 7,356,294,000 #570 (20224F: 9,718,867,000 %

), HrhEahi 6,026,694,000 T (2022 4F: 6,841,942,000 #5T) - TEALE B IR IARAT 7
HeEhxch 734,139,000 HIT (2022 4F: 1,232,109,000 #55) HAAFER, HHFT 20234 12
A 31 A 821/ 363,150,000 #:75 (2022 4E: 698,544,000 #7T)

F 20234 12 A 31 A, RITIREKELE 5,927,696,000 #76 (20224E: 6,586,105,000 #70) JF&
SAERE FML LA LML, HAEEERRE, PRI SNEREZER. T 2023

412 H 31 H, HEEETENH 4,909,540,000 ¥75 (2022 4F: 5,354,348,000 #70) - AR
s s B A R S I . B TARAT SRR BB IR IR B A A T T B A R B AER IR

EABE I TR R TIRR A RS, RERA LM SRS KRR E

P, REFEER SRS R — SRR T SR E 37,

F 20234 12 A 31 A, AREFRITHEK 8,454,330,000 %75 (2022 4E: 8,979,416,0003#70) 1%iF

EFIRAT 2.80%Z 7.02% (2022 4F: 1.72%% 5.94%) 5, #RITHEK 217,560,000 ¥ 7C
(2022 4. To) EE RIS 3.35% B, KRBTSR 6,733,483,000 #T (2022 4

6,282,719,000 ¥71.) EEEEFIEN T 2.82%% 3.75% (2022 4F: 1.72%%E 3.99%) it 8.

F 20234 12 A 31 B, AEFAFTHTHRE (20224 411,553,000 70D PAEILHHE:
6,529,009,000 75, (20224F: 5,002,452,000 #75) BLARMIHE; 25,207,000 #n (2022 4
197,215,000 ¥&75) PARKIGiHE: & 2,117,674,000 %75 (2022 4F: 3,368,196,000 #Jt) BTG
i
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MAHETF
2023 2022

T THT
LR
A aFF— I - 782,227
e RS — T 4,889,072 2,233,403
BE - JERDEA 4,889,072 3,015,630
B[ 3
Bre e —a KN - 154,202
NGk i Wi L 761,506 881,127
R — T 1,082,905 1,114,360
gty R [ s e T A - 1,117,400
BA - BIHA 1,844,411 3,267,089
SR 6,733,483 6,282,719

TF 2020 4F 4 A, AATIRE DA BRI ERTRTIZZ S E SR U ARTHER P RS
RS ENR R, BEMEFIART 3042, ARENE ZHEMBRETFSE. T 2020
8R40, AATERTE—HUARTIHERPIER, £FAART 1044 GuBRiERITZ
AT 3,704,000 81D , EFRIZH 3.60% 5 HR b1 &Z4T B AM =4, FE%1H 20204 8 A
s AR BB E AE4EY AT, AATCTF 2023 4 8 A AME B ARTIHEAR P HERELE
KFIB.

F20214E 1 B, KARRFUARTHENE W HIERE, £H08ART 1042 Gk
FF3r AR 3,000,000 51 , FFIZEH 3.75%F R & 17 BT A= 4. FISSH 2021 4
1 HRERER B IbSEAT.

F 20224 4 B, AARRTUARTHERS=HER, 2FIART 1042 GHERHIK
Fr AR 3,000,000 B1) , 4EFIZEH 3.10% & 8RR 1T BRI =4, FIREFik 20225
4 BRERE HIHEES. F20224E 9 1, KARRTHE=ZHUARTHHEREEYRLIE

%, SHRART 1042, FFHEH 1.72%L0F AR 202343 A 18H. AAR BT 2023
3 B AT E = A RTH-ERE YRR R A S LR .
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T-20234E 3 [, AATIRE st A RSEHN ERAT 18] 173778 5 R Ut v IR 4 e g B S2 e
R, EMASIART S04, ARMARRYBMEETFHE. T2023F4H17H, &
ANFIRAT 2023 EEHE VAR TIHMER PSR, SBOAARR 1072 GuERHERIFIAR
i 3,000,000 &) , EFIEN 3.20% KR hRAT BRI AN FE. FIBHH 2023 F4 ARE
BE b EER . 72023467 3 17H, RAAFRIT 2023 EEE YA R IHERPHIR
. SHANRT 1512 GRS AR 4,500,000 81) » 4HR%H 2.97% K MRt K47 H
W AN A . MBI 2023 48 7 FRERER HIESFEIA. T2023F 8 A 23 H, ARH
RAT 2023 EEBE=HUARTIHEMPIERE, SBOART 104 AR
3,000,000 1) . 4FIFN 2.829% B IR th K AT HRHAMAE. FSHUH 2023 4 8 LB
B ke AT, T 202343 5 9 H, ARAFRAT 2023 EEFE—HILARTTHE R R
%, STAART 1012, RN 2.60%EAFHIH2023F9A s H. FBRTATHE
AA&—iERA. ZATBT 2023 4 9 A At 2023 FEE—HUARTIHARBEHRES
K BFE.

AARF 2019 4F 11 A 28 AFKKS GRID HRAR  [RYIKSE ], AAFZE&REHE
AT BRIEEPE S RRES R C [ZtRI] ) FTRERAT R SORHES T E & BB 1A |
WEHRZ ST ( [ LR ) B sil. T 202043 A 26 H, EARFIRBMTRNEH ( [TF
WK D BN T RRAT R RRER R RIELF W, F 3RS RAT A
AEL T AR 3 ZRHEFHAEHST 8 L7 W BT 2 N HAERKT.

F 2020 4F 6 A 17 HRABART 3 2B XRRESREAT, Hb AR 2.85 205648 5
SRS o E A AR B A R BT 1,500 J5IKECA = SCRAESR W (IR INK 5 A

AT LY BIGH S ANIEIIK S « B ERES KRR R A ML T TA BT A R
TUANS KA ERTR H AT 1 2020 48 3 B 1 BS54 Ay e 1R 9 v v5 K s Bl Bl a8
FAFT H A R AR B MR MZ R 4t T AP E LR

A G B P PR R A AR A B P S FRESF B B 2 A, B

() RAEEP LTS 01, AR 50,000,000 ( [HRIGHEEF=SCRHESF 1] );

(b) REZHEF=ZHIESH 02, AARM 54,500,000 ¢ [RFBHEE - SCHRHESF 2] )

(c) ABLHEF=THIES 03, AARM 57,000,000 ( [HRAHBF=SFHES 3] )s

(@) RAEZEPFHIESH 04, FART 60,500,000 ¢ [RAEHEFLFRHIEF 4] O 5 K
(e) hIAEEBEFILHES 05, NARM 63,000,000 ¢ [MEFELFEILRHESFS] D -

LR T R Y A4 BRI BARRIET R 2 B E N AR EE, EAT 338%F 3.99% L FEF
ZibB. AATTWLLEERTF 2023 FE3H 268  [8 12408%KE ) ) Z AR E R
ES 4 RSB RATES: 5 R, FIZRENEINRRD T 200 MEA I ELFT
0.01%) » MAEREFELHATESH 4 RIBEYRF T HAES 5 A ATA — TR, wIE4 X0
BEIREERIIIKS . ZTRNZ TENEE R AEREMRE 26 HEZE 12 MEKH AT
g 17 Hik.
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26.

MAHES (82
F 2023 4E, ARAFMERT iARAEEART 138,000,000.

T 2017487 A 21 H, AAFRAHEGEEESE KT UARTIHEAS SFARTART 25
fLATESE ( [AFRESE] ) SHXERPITSLAM .

T20184E 8 H 160 ( [BTKETHY] ) , FATRTE-MALLBFHIART 812 (1
BT AR 4,171,000 81) MIATGS, BIR B - RRT BRI ANILE. F2HA
AREAERRMZ S )ASLPART 4 CIHZEHR 4.60%IF BRI, (A&
AR 4 23 EERR 4.58%iF B0 AATEFHERRT YRR B ILE4EN
FE, MEATMEZERK, BERRTANRET=FE, AARERESE AR S
FEGAMA TREZERAE. AAABTERETENE, AE=FH0RA R 20T
T A ATERNZREE (0E) . BEbRE ATE —SUAB, R iR B A R 5
BEETFAAT. EIRPBIATEYNERA A TR A R AR B ERE LA
FHEATLIER,

F 2021 4E7 B, AARBEAEEMAF SN 2021458 3 16 HE 202348 15
H - B AR R M 4.60% RN 3.20%. T 2021 4E 7 B, A2 R EAAEE WA TSN
RFh—E 2021 4E 8 A 16 HE 2023 4E 8 A 15 HALMMMZETRIZ M 4.58% AN 3.20%.

FHEZ 2021 4E 12 A 31 BUL4ER, AR DWESE ZHIAFAGHFHBF—EILART
79,100,000, L AR 70,000,000 T4, MRIA AR 9,100,000 4R . THE 2021
412 H 31 HAHERE, A4 CIWIES ZHA RS SR =4 ART 183,050,000, JLhA
F T 180,000,000 CLi k4, Mikl4 AR 3,050,000 DHIER. RARCT 20234 8 ARATT
AR AL KRB

F20196 1821 ( [B=REFEB] ) , AATARTE=MAESESEBAART 714 G1
BAISE T AR 3,632,000 i) MIARMEE, HRBESRET BRI ARG, B0
FUE LA 3.80% i B RAATN T ESRET RIREINH ESFEH L. RIEA
ALY &5, ABSREFANRTSER, AQRERRBESRAR ST REHHR
THEZ ZEHZE, AATETFESRETANE, ZAE=F0F B/ 20 A TEHAGFFH
KA (ATE) - B EEANIA —TUIR, WL IR =ARRERER TEAA
. TR TS R A A T & A RS S WA RMBER R AR T
H. 7202418, AAFEAEESHARMRSE 20224 1 A 21 HE 20244 1 H 20 HIE
A AR 3.89% RN 3.08%.
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27. GREBIL
WIEBT S R AR TERZZFNT:
3o GE R TR P

W B A R T
FEEA RETRE
TH#s
F-Z - —_%—H—H 6,127
BRI 2 A FERL I (FE9) (2,462)
IR ( 412)
Fozo—Ft+-A=Z+—HERZE_=%—H—H 3,253
MRS AR R (E9D (2,326)
Ak ( 47
FoZ—_=#+=H=1+—H 880
32 FEF IR A7 £
MRAE U
CE BRI %
e &) —BaR
MEAR 1258
Fir=tE 2 ZH=EZ  HBAR
ARMEEE  ErEES kSR FHoAth it
FHTT Tt THIT THTT T
FoZ-—%—H—H 175,918 1,475,181 412,668 (30) 2,063,737
Ik GEA) WEK
AR (FHE 9 ( 11,684) 28,755 55,254 - 72,325
IC R ( 19,885)  ( 127,522) ( 37,968) 3 ( 185372)
FoZ- o+ H=+—H
K;_E_ZHF—A—H 144,349 1,376,414 429,954 27) 1,950,690
g GEN) TREER
BRI (B 9 ( 10,528) 89,498 55,900 29 134,899
VIR E ( 6,063) ( 37,252) ( 12,329) - ( 55,644)
Foz2—=#t+-fA=+—H 127,758 1,428,660 473,525 2 2,029,945
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27.

28.

IR (LR

F 202346 12 A 31 B, A&RITh E g 2 TS5 $54) 329,763,000 Wn (2022 4
203 447,000 H5T) » HXLTIRAAEIRR 4 THRZ A R HJE RIRBUEH . N R T—
ERENEE. TEESkE CHAITR—BEBZETHEAR, HASEFRA RN RE
BRI AT IR A A AR T B, WA ER W= 7 Z AR T AR ET
Tigr=.

BEhEAHERE, THhE o R R ST O AR Al A B BRI R B AN 10%
FidBi. ZIEE 20084E 1 A | BigER, HEHT 2007F 12 A 31 Higz &M, b E R
AN E TR AP R AT A RSN, WA SUE BB . AEE & AR 5%
10%. B, A&EBZHT + EAHESLAHEA R IKE 20084 1 A 1 A= d 2z BRI
YR 2 B BTN E 8 .

AT [ E R IR R BRI RBLUE R

A
2023 2022
Tt T
BEE:
10,000,000,000 ft (2022 4E: 10,000,000,000 i)
FERETEE 1.00 ¥ 78 AR 10,000,000 10,000,000
ERITREE:
2,860,876,723 i (2022 4E: 2,860,876,723 )
4ERRTEE 1.00 W 7GR B 2,860,877 2,860,877
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29. fiE&
AR T AAE S R 2 % S AR E T AR E thz AP R LT
(@) i E &

%mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁmﬁﬁ%$%ﬂﬂﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%w%zw%ﬁ%ﬁ
PelE 20 R
(i) VEEME

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?*@%ﬁ&ﬂ%«*%k%ﬁﬂ@ﬁﬂ&»,*@WE&%@%&%&%W
mﬁ%oﬁ%ﬂ%,E&umm%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%miﬁﬁﬁﬁé,Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ%g
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%m%%mo%ﬁ%*@ﬂ%%mﬁ,&%ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ%&
ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁﬁ@MWE&ﬂm&%ﬁ$o%ﬁ%&X%ﬁ%ﬁ*@wﬁﬁﬁZ%ﬁﬁﬁ
B

iy NBEREE
S 7 Ak 4 TR B S UG RO R . ARIE 20154F 12 4 15 H A2 #1247 B 1
A A BRI A R R, AR T RMER SR STIRE IR REMNERM
#o

(iv) HihE&

oAt B O AME R L.

30. KERATH

2023 2022

F¥#Io Tt
F—H—H 806,982 -
RiFKEREAT R - 806,982
Frib AR 37,578 14,334
SRTFAREREATAFAA ( 37,578) ( 14,334)
F+=Z—H=1+—H 806,982 806,982

%mnﬁéﬂ,$&ﬂﬁﬁ$ﬁ%k%mmmmwmmﬁﬁﬁ$lﬂ,M%Eﬁ&$ﬁw%
%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁA&m@ﬁmmm(ﬁ%%wwmmm%ﬁ)oﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁz
R ITRIZEN 3.30%, MEEESERTRREERRE.
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31, ZAUERERME
(@ EXFAEZH

6) FE 2023 4F 12 A 31 HILEE, RERMRIATAF GRS I ARG
A SRS ZR 144,462,000 H7G (2022 4E: 121,613,000 ¥75) , o FE
2023 4 12 A 31 HZ AWM REERN [ R B IADRATZKI ] , WA
HERERET .

(i)  #E 20234 12 A 31 HIEFE, REMGRIMAE-BKERALTAEEAN
SR 25,128,000 B 76 (2022 4F: 13,672,000 #:7G) , FFCRIE20234E 12 A 31 H
AWM ERMER [ R R AR , S ARERF LR ESHERE
Mo

(i) HZE 2023412 A 31 Bib4EE, —EIELRRBA RN —2IEE R FRidi {4
AT 2023 FE IR D AR B R A7) 5 37,187,000 #iyt, XA HRIH
TSR .

(b) RAFIEDIT A AR

MA R4 B

b B~ TEE

RATHRE P MRS BERAREE
T#T TR Tt THIT

TZEZ-_F—H—H 9,091,739 5,350,199 125,637 -
ARG E ENED) 267,952 1,574,448 (503,664) (17,573)
W% - - 544,013 -
Mt EA R NIEERERFEROKE - - - 22,219
LA ( 380,275)( 641,928)  ( 37,074) 718
T2 4+-HA=1+—H

k-ZE-=H#—H—H 8,979,416 6,282,719 128,912 5,364
BRI S W E~ LTS ( 133,352) 683,036 (550,329) -
W% %R - - 590,568
MitEARNEERERSROEE

(Bt @) - - - 37,187

MAEEFEEAFAMIEERE R

BB (B a) . - - (37,187)
LRARS) ( 174,174) ( 232,272)  ( 13,935) 471
F-2-_=%+=-A=+—H 8,671,890 6,733,483 155,216 5,835
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3. SGANSHRERIE (8D
(c) FMEIMEH L

ZARMEHERR MRS B ST

2023 2022

FHET Fi#IT
ELEmE+ 1,258 4,188
RIS 7,485 10,931

32. B
A FE R T EAES BAR TR T O T HEIP 2 AL BIE P= 2 VB E T W SR M 25 A 26.
F 20234 12 A 31 H, BIEIPER=2 BIKEEER 5,550,547,000 #70 (2022 4F: 6,281,733,000
BT .

33. ki
(a)  AEATUHESREHERAABLT:

2023 2022
Tt T

R AERNEE S AN ARNT
CITAER L% 2,857,994 2,017,857

) T 20234 12 A 31 H, AEH Gk L RAER T2 BA K 22,711,000 7T
(2022 4 23,329,000 #5) -

71



P E ARG ERAH]
W 55 4R AR M

BE_Z

34.

LT—=

L

FE+-A=t+—HiEFE

KEKTT3E 5

BRASG S5 RN R il B 2 X B R GRS, FHEAN, RERRET FAREKKBEFLS:
FEBSAERELENEA RIMIERBARRE TR TS

(a)

(b)

(c)

%i B BB MRt
4 55 Wi it
B IR 55 A

AR EARER KRB AT RAE T TR A5

W HEE RS e
W S5t

FERAEAERRE AFRET THRBET 5

157K A B B RS TS
BAREE RS T
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87,801
12,790
26,805

2023
T
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34, REHRH (80

@  AERASFEARRKBARRET THRKITRLS:

2023 2022

FfE Tt T
BEEE ) 11,509 -
AHRES (ii) 8,962 1,722
REE 2R H (iii) 2,844 3,038
BERERH (iv) 14,615 17,779

ipacE
()  REHETAERRRHEA RN W ERSGET .

Gy  FIAEEIR RKE AR T 2023 4K 2022 43RG 3 5315 RAT R
P R RATAER AT BE R, HERATHRIEMRAH DG

(i) IR 2 R A SO AR 3% T3 005 USRS .
(v) IS BIR 2 MHE 2 5 STt BefRRe 3% A 753007 Ul R 2 sl
(e  ShEMHEMEA LS

AR f P EBUMRER E AL . BUR A L ER A R B eI & B
i (SRR (EAEEERY] ) HESHMREFRETER. 72023412431 H
AR, A4ER SR EA Y FBTRRZ SIS (ERRT) HKEERS. /17
TR B RREARELTF Y . AAREFANSHEHEEAE D2 JIR 5 TR AL
B b i R rp 2 35, T LR A B B LAt I Aol 3 235 ol o EE B 6 2
B, BXHARLR AR5 ERERRA 280, AEE I 5 BIRSSHISLE
B, ASEUEFERET AR, PARTE M REARMESAALE. &%
WEE PRERZ ARG, AATEFINZER S B THE L ERRENTL
5o

(  AERACIAFEEZEBRARZIRMWT:

2023 2022
T T

HHNE. Fd P HAMEHE RER 20,684 23,027
Reftitkl 2,057 2,271
22,741 25,298
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34,  REEFRG ()

(© AEASAANBATNTIATRHREEMREL. T 2023 F12A31H, FXEHSZ

s S E R IR E A T L2 M A 4 S RS = £ 4508 4,082,000 %570 (2022 o
2,572,000 ¥70) » ERATRRMEA R 2 B 560 4,076,000 Heor (2022 4E:
2,545,000 #7G)

35, &ETEMARNMERARMERES

EEETE RS ENAENY. RBKK. R, HABRRR R bR K A
SRS R 2 A R E S BRI AR, EE W T RS TATRAEN.

FEHT M EEmEIEREESM T AA RN ETEZBEREREF. THMRE HH, W%
EEEIL NV AR T A2 OHEEH, FEEGEFMAZ EBMANE. SEHESREHE
F R R . BHERSEETRHHERER KGR, DUEEL AR SRS

SRBEFRARZARMELET AT GRS (MARERERNE HEH T LUK
FEHNK. TRFERBERTIATET AR E:

Ho RIS R AR A SRR 2 A R TR B R (ERARERIR
FEMY TR BUTERAR, RN eREZ i, 720234 12 A 31 H, BiE
Wi s, AEAFSZRBARBEIEEAER.

BLA OO AR 2 g E R 2 A RN ETRIE B RR A T MBI EEE, AR
52 R ERT.

BLA S E TR 28 2 T T R AR 2 A SR TR B M AR S TR -

BT 2023 4 12 A 31 X &E T BME2 BRI WS A BRI EHER & REURES
fr:

HRAITH A FoExTRA
EEBTS Zh N i [l B I U

PAA R EEA WORER P E 2.80% FME LA CTED
WA dE B 3 (2022 4E: 1% (2022 4F: 1%)
AR 2.80%) BEHARME

b 319,000 3G
(2022

110,000 #70)

38n 325,000 ¥t
(2022 4

111,000 ¥#570)
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FEXEKRAKSHRAF
WA 55 R B

®E—

35.

FEET A= —HIbEE

S TEHARNERARMEESR (5

AR EE R

TRIFA LR TANARNETEELK:

EARPETT R

F2023E 12831 H

PLA So BT AT 281
e Errie st

BLA S E T A S 28 Y
I i) & 8

F2022%F 12 H31 H

PAA S E T AR R /G
P L

BLA e BT AR BRI
JE BT BEAUR E

A st B R A LR

PR EATME  EBARTH

Rt WABER  SWMAEEE

GE—%)  GEZ% GB=9D Bt
FHT FHT BT
- 88,150 - 88,150
- - 32,998 32,998
88,150 32,998 121,148
A e E TSR BLR S HE
TR ERWRE ERRAHR
Wikt AR SRR
E-% CGEZ8% E=4 Bt
TG TFH#T T THT
186,219 - 186,219
- - 35,498 35,498
186,219 35498 221,717
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35. £ETHANARMERARMERS (D
ARMERE (8D
HARMEERE: (5
FEEHARMAETETENNZNMT:

2023 2022
TF¥#o TH#Ht
PAA i vh AR 2 0 Ak L T AU 3
F—H—H 35,498 36,122
A St EZ s (BHVE 6O ( 1,586) 2,597
AL ( 914) ( 3,221)
F+=-H=+—H 32,998 35,498

AEFT 2023 £ 2022 4F 12 A 31 BHFRAETIHA o it B SR,

HE 2023 45 12 B 31 BIHEE, S EA RN EHBZIFEEMER, BT L&
P2 R LB, BEEABTALMEBEAREH (20224 ) .
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i E KRS ERAF]
W R M
BE 2=+ A=+—HILEE

36.

AR eR TR

THREHER, SRMNEMTAKKEMEIT:

2023 4E

A S

TSI K B HoAt RSO IR <k B 7
HAt &R B
N FREEFNY

TN LA R B A A KT S R A7 43

A
H UL

77

BRRAA BARHME
SHRH BB

SRR SR R
SRV S T & T
5,060,804 - 5,060,804
- 121,148 121,148
1,881,401 - 1,881,401
6,942,205 121,148 7,063,353

e AT
e

TG

2,897,784
15,405,373

18,303,157
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BE—

36.

KRS HIRAT
R
o=t A=+ RIEEE

BRARIS LT AR (8D

FIERAR, ZFEMNERTRARNKEENT:

2022 4E

PSSO R B A BRI S b BE 7
HAt & RhE™
& RIREENH

PN SEASI K B A BLA R G Rl $7 45

mst
E5%

78

B AR
SR TSR
SV
TG T
3,751,051

- 221,717
2,845,907 -

SE
T

3,751,051
221,717
2,845,907

6,596,958 221,717

6,818,675

He i A

SRR

T

2,909,074

15,262,135

18,171,209
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37. AR E R HAR RBUR

AERZ FEAMTAGFEER LS, WSS TAZ EEAWETAAEANFIZER
WL, AEREE SR R AR, AIERBUKHK I ARSI, RN A kR Al
Riftak, TyEEEE LS.

AEFLE T ALY FERGAREFERG. TR, ERRAGERSREAS. EHe
Rt B R T A AR L BUE, B RBORIEA T T3 AERA RATETRZSITBOR
HT W SRR 2.5

FIEL G

FAEF 7 PR Bk HA R e R AL SN BRREBRAR NGR. B
F B R 2 (5 S A A E A MR Z IR B A R R R A RN AR R AR . AIREDTE
FIH 4 AT TR R R . ASRB 2 FIRMEOL TR S, VT R0

) FIZAEOL
TEBIAER T &R R Z SIS (i BERA SRR S R RESHF IS H
Tt B e 2 RIFEBE.
2023 2022
SERRFI R SEhRF 2
% T % T
ERERE S (FFEK) B
BT 2.82-3.75 6,951,043 1.72-3.99 6,282,719
W Rl TRNIBE A W) B 475 ( 6329) 475 ( 9,365)
6,944,714 6,273,354
FEENRIRETE /. (K0 3
HHE 2.80 - 7.02 8454330 1.72-5.94 8,979,416
W MERIIELNY 0.00-1.85 ( 1,881,401) 0.00-1.85 ( 2,845,907)
6,572,929 6,133,509
A BT 13,517,643 12,406,863
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W55 R AHE
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37, WMERBEHBEREBUE (8

FIERR (B

(ii)

Ut

F 20234 12 A 31 B, 7EFARMTBRERFEHERT, MREE LA /TH 1%,
i BB A ER BB AT ERRD /BN 135,176,000 #76 (2022 4F: 124,069,000
HBIT) .

AR 4 MG AR B R BT BRI AT R A SR R ) . BB E TR BRI R
TG PR OERE, HOATEFHREAERNFAIFTRENREFER @IS
M EFIERE R SR TR . ST ARG TGS AR s R R AT = TR
R AR BRI R R, Hot A2 A BB AT R A R TR R AR g i 7 A
FEFE 2 BB ER . A 20T 2022 R Hr BT IR R HEEAT .

SR

0

TR BT R

AEFFLST IS 2 Difs st H LM B D THMEZ E5E. e XREFM
P, SISCEIR R LA R W 5 AR . SRR 5 2 eiEe. ARM. %
TG~ BB ICREKTG.

TR AR T SR PR E RS A Th AR5 T BLSM 9 58 i iHEXT Cafiih B sk i
SRR AR . REFIEN, BHRAKRZ SFETFIR, FFEREHARMINR
CRBE. S 2 M SRR REARER RIS AR A 28, At AR
538
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FEFRKFHRAH
W 25 R R B

BEZ

37.

&5 — —
o

F+_H=+—HitEE

W 55 RS B H AR RBUE (40)

SRR (88
TARSZZIRMRAR (8

(M

WekReLny

.
EAY

R () SEEIA R RIS

LA K B FeAth R4 3K

Y e e )
(CE2

Bl () SERAT
JOLA Tk e FeAth AT 3K

A
T

x
T

T

TR ZZ AT
(BUHEIGHIIR)
T20234E 12 H31 H
ARM Fnigss #t E I Bk
TH#x T T¥#x T Tl

16,833 2,522 17,044 15,246 -

(163,170) - (1,917,694) - (25,207)
(523,583) ( 55) 4,328,433 23 35252
( 5608 (1,301) (  4,268) - (9

(675,528) 1,166 2,423,515 15,269 10,037

TR A Th R
(BLHEI6HIR)
T2022% 12 A 31 H

ARM i #It Xt Bom
T THT Tt T T#s

62,736 10,098 248,533 53,997 -

- - (2,172,925)  (411,553) (197,215)
(694,383) (  55) 3,312,305 23 34,832
( 4833) (2,119 ( 5738) ( 134)( 151)

(636,480) 7,924 1,382,175  (357,667) (162,534)
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37.

T 45 R 5 2 H A BB (B)

SR (BE)

(i)

TREFURE T2 RS IR AL A E S B AR MINOICE T2 H R, mAra
A RS E R, FERRRBRIZRGAZ AN RN, Stns, Bk
YT 34,28 7T FO FE I 2 AN R 25 70 S LA B¢ T B BB TS T SE BN R, i
FHTEEETE, 5UETIMENRF RO X ZINOLRES R ER.

F 12831 H

2023 £ 2022 4E
BRBLAT R A
LR/ BREHS LERLHS za#EH/
CFER (T CFE (TFE
% Tt % Tt
AR 10 ( 67,553) 10 ( 63,648)
(10) 67,553 (10) 63,648
o 10 117 10 792
(10) ( 117 (10) (  792)
It 10 242352 10 138,218
(10) (242,352) (10) (138,218)
EYW 10 23,119 10 ( 14,564)
10) ( 23,119) (10) 14,564
BKJG 10 1,004 10 ( 16,253)
(10) ( 1,004) (10) 16,253

b3 R4S R AR A ] S & p AR IR T B0 R B IR S IR
3% FH I SR A T RO BR B AT R SEI R IA B T

BRSNS A 5h B T B B A RS WK AR B T A AR AR R
BHNCRG ISR TR, 35U ASMSR AR B LM miHENERIA A
ARSI B SR o M R 5 41 BRI 55 (O 25 SR B A AR SR I 22 B B T
PR EATIE 2022 SERI TR R — B HERAT .
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37.

RIRFHRAF
R
ROEFT A=+ —HIEEER

W55 RS B B AR RBOE (80)

1GIER 5
EHRE W E E B RBOE, SRR a2 AR, FUEE B2 B R 30
HZ 90 Hpy 2.

AR F 2 BB SR E KRB H 238 5 MR S5 2 YGRS H POl kst
FEFIE W K BOT. TOT KETF BOO ZH 2 SIRFIFHFEENMRMS LB,

TIREBAR, [ EHbRSERm ] K [54%F=] 4 27,555,303,000 #70 (2022 4F:
25,411,362,000 #75) , HA R AZ P EIN 4,239,729,000 #576 (2022 4F: 4,042,740,000
W) , RRSSASE R F KR P RN 9,042,498,000 #57G (2022 4E: 8,014,382,000 i

7T) . HTF BOT. TOT K BOO ZHEHIAE 5 75 ik BT BURHLE, ARERAAEERKE
. RERHTRA LGS RETHI .

REEERRAR KB A ERET S, FHEETIHAFRNRRE (BT RIS X
ERARITE) HEEMTA. GZAMESRER D ZMER T NIKEGHE AR AR &R
B R AR RIS I R e

M RAI SR AT AR SR B E SRR — MRS A HOER, GRS R A .
R (E A R RS PR WS AR

o 15155 A ™ I 55 bR 5
. ERER, HEREGEREM
. 15755 NRA VT Befs o 7= Bt AT HoAth U 55 41 .

B BRI KA DB S TR, SSRGS AR SR04 0. N
ZU R EABE R AV HAE R R . R RE N RSN SIS 0 S AT IR IRs
PR T IR, FWMSIREHENSE 0 5 RV ArE RSUIKFCR A BN S H00
Thk&. TR TR B ERERER.
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37.

W45 PR B 3 B bR B (50)

1EEME (5

AR D5 T B U AR T A A TRABINE S RG AR &M TANEAET
PIRHNG B 75 ToKIERIN. A% B FA RO A AU F TR RS — BB, S B BLRGE
=HrE:

H—RrE s VR LA SR, ARG 12 4 A TURME ST T AR

BB s A RSO 8 7 A AR B AR SRR R BT, AR BN AL an R I UM
ERTHREE.

FE=HE A R TR S PR . AL AR BRHE R TR
SRR T RIS AR R AR o F R SR TR 7T BRI th AV

A . AR T 5 — B Bl B SR ST A I R S SR SRR . AR T
2003 46 5% 2002 4E 12 A 31 AAEBRALEHE A SBGR TR FUF B E R ER R

T 2034 12 31 B, FaieERESNIEMRT BEREFRE BE2 RIFHEMIA.

e B 3 R SR 4 A S T B TR AR . DA [ 20307 ) B [RIKOK
R ARG ) TG 1S SE R 3 — 25 R A BT M SR TE 19 & 21.

A

A N AL SR S AT T, IS BA I S SR DL
HEIIS TR, AR ISR R BRE SRS (AT L, WilRAs
AR TSR T 6 B\ B S LS RS R ST, ARSI B R3]
Bk
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37.

KA AIRAT
RINE
Fo=Et A=+ HIEE

45 A B B AR RBUR. (50

TENHER (5

TRBFIAER TR ENE TRSRMAENRR S ARIRERL, THETE&ARITHAR
ATE (AFERSAFER GNBRE) BIEREHABITORRTHOFL) EALASH
WA RARTR  5 5 S

2023
Cr RSN —4HEUE WEFEUE
REWE —FW BF ET
W e B BRESR WEHN AR hFUE

F#E Rt T PEn BT TER

TR IR R B Ho At
AT IR 4 R A7 A5 2,897,784 2,897,784 2,897,784 - -
FAER fdo 6,856 7,498 5,596 1,491 64 347

EE 15,405373 16,911,415 5,055,420 2,575,330 6,368,008 2,912,657

18,310,013 19,816,697 7,958,800 2,576,821 6,368,072 2,913,004

2022
CEESEN —FUE WFEUL
WE/E  —FN BF HF
LSRN M BRIEESR WER RFER RFENE

THT T T T Tt TR

TN REAT e R K oA,

RATEIIEE A 2,909,074 2,909,074 2,909,074 -
M AR 3,007 3,580 2,733 382 65 400
EHE 15,262,135 16,706,762 5,970,717 4,080,570 3,756,098 2,899,377

18,174,216 19,619,416 8,882,524 4,080,952 3,756,163 2,899,777

F20224 12 B 31 H, HNEEKEHER 154,202,000 70 RATE 7= SCRAESF Hpas
KR Y TR ER T AEBANR. 3 REHERTE, B X BRI AR
RIS TR M 155,115,000 ECEU T ARES): T 20224 12 A 31 H, 155,115,000 T
R —ENEIFER] #18) .

WX AR E TR EE HEE, AR R P Y T 5 2 S5k T 2T (| 7 AR BT

B4h. HRIERETHEAESZ &, T 20224F 12 A 31 BRHERFEZON: T 2023 FE DRI
70,907,000 #570, KT 2024 4EZE 2025 4EFI W2 89,816,000 #TG
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37.  WSRREHHERRBOE (8

BB
AEBHEE B AN N ER B R A ARSI L E R R ERASWNEE S, LR
THB AR ER A .

MRFHIABEER AL, AMEFASRERBIRMNESH. RITTBMORIELTHES. A8
Bl KR ATE 7 R B AR R (2 IR 35 B R I SHLAF KT T RS 3R B B A [ 3R R i
ZIERFFFEETE . F 2023 EK 2022 4F 12 A 31 BiE#E, BASHEGEIETLTE,

B RIRYE 55 1 B A 28 bR R SR AR A L. 055V BTN AR B TR A5 551 AR DA 28
BEHHE. S5RIENREs (AERSEMERARIUR, FOBRE A, MBI
BB WeXREEMYTHE. FERGERERA. K. KEBATARIES

IS .

2023 2022

T Fio
LA M 2R B LA A+ 2R I5 3,241,736 3,168,112
EHhy 15,405,373 15,262,135
i W& FIREE N ( 1,881,401) ( 2,845907)
& EE 16,765,708 15,584,340
A BE 13,452,342 13,000,878
51 55 R AN A 25 E 3R 125% 120%

BRIV 55 1R BT 25 BTk EE LRATRI A T A R AL L TSR 2 Rk, FERWEZ
GhFhti 2 5 A 35 iRl o
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38. HiIREI

() F20244E 11 8H, AAFAMMCTEMRIE 20244 1 A 4 HE 20244 1 B 5 HRATH
EYe RKEERAT 2024 SEEHE— WP HIZERE ( (2024 EFEF—HHHEE] O, I
B E A BT AR T RN AR E 2. 2024 FEE R HIEEN K
FAESAANRT 1542, HRATE (HEEAMNTFEEELSR AR R EEFIR TR
BEZRFGARGEEER) , RITERFZER 2.80%.

(b)  F20244E 4 H, KARAMTEREATEFIRES ( [2024 B3RS ] D FHHE
LSRRI E, FIRITHEEI ISR AART 2042, 2024 B HEREE
WA RE P I FATHFRB R SRS . MG SRR MR RBOA AR T 19
12, BPESEBBEENG, REETTFESNETIEAIANRT 142, BHEYIK
KA. ARSCFE P SHRESR TANR, WIRRAN 1R 9F, FRFENTF 2.50%
Z 2.70%.
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39. AAFZMERRE
LR A TFIRE AR A AT MBS RAK 2 TRl -

2023
TG
e sh B
s NGV e 10,023,114
&
o Aih 7 U R I 10,505,695
Hih&phinre 88,150
W& RIEENY 42,470
W FE = B 10,636,315
W i
HoAth B 42K 0 183,082
fEGE 3,624,164
sl R A 3,807,246
WEh e 6,829,069
HrE IR B f f5t 16,852,183
E| ¥ RNk i
B 6,049,733
B 10,802,450
Wi
AAT N EREE AR G
A< 2,860,877
&% 7,134,591
9,995,468
KEEATH 806,982
e BT

10,802,450

38

2022
TG

10,618,932

9,611,167
186,219

98,085

9,895,471

145,880

4,634,455
4,780,335
5,115,136

15,734,068

4,772,482

10,961,586

2,860,877

7,293,727

10,154,604

806,982

10,961,586
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40.

FEWEAF BE

AARMEARVERWT

VEM AL/ eRAT

BicHh Sk St

B2y S - Bl b S MR A
sRTKEEBERRAA" hE/ AR
CBHE@E)) hERH 10,000,000
JeBkAERERAF hE/ ART

(F2024F1H18H v [ Py 1,200,000,000

EH)
Bio-Treat International Limited ZE/B4E/REEE S 10,000
%70
China Everbright Water HFrink 5,000,000
International Pte. Ltd. Fom¥E oo
hEXFKSREERAT  HBEYEREES 2E7T
1 E Y ARG ERFRAH HiE 100 #76
KIERBIX eKKESHR HE AR
AR (FHEED rRERAH 10,000,000
KESKENAKFSFEIR hE, AR
A" (HHE@)&EMHEED REPM 10,000,000
KN KSRGS EIR dE, AR
AT (HHEQ)AHHE®@)) rEAHE 10,000,000
K2 JERX K KGSHR hE,/ ANREH
AT (FHEEY RERHL 66,500,000
FeKKSS CKiE) FRAR" FE AR
CBHEE)) ENH 120,000,000
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FEMBARTR (8

AR

RIEFRIGIR T 5 7K A2 R
~A" (HHE@S))

KIETRIR =B T5 KA
HIRAR" (FHE@)D

RESFLIKRFARA
CPHEG) B FHFE4))

PRI AR A PR A F]
(PEE4))

FHHEAAKKFERAR"
CBHE@E))

MK RE R A"
Pz CY))

RRVER GG B RAT"
CPfE@))

MBI AL KA B A R AR
CPRHE@))

RIEHMGKKSERAR"
CPREE@E)

ILRBA R (R AR
AN

E+B Umyelttechnik GmbH

R TN B K A HE T 5
HRAF" (FHE®@))

Ft+ZH=+t—HILFEE

VEM AL/
Bicth g X
BV S

hE,/
o Py

HE,
H ] Py 3
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o P 3t

HE,/
] Py 3
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Hh B Py

HE,
Hh [ P
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A i
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MR A
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ARKM
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AR
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Bkt
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40.  FEMBATIRE (8

ER N

JeRFKFIH GLED
BIRAR" (BHEAE))

FeRHKFIA (FED
BIRAR (PHE@E)

KKAKE () HRAF'
CBREE))

KKK (FEEHETT) ARAH
(RIFR [k GEID
BRAR] > # (A

Nk () BIRAR
CPiHE@))

SeKmER R (B AR
A" (HHE@))

S KGR (I
FHIRAR® (BiE@)

HkAk% (bm) BHRAF
QirzC))

SRS CRMD HRA
CHHE@))

FRKE (X FRAA'
(FHEE@)D

FAKS EMD BRARAF

VM RRAL/
Fidih Gk
ViR

i,/
Ay it

i,/
Hh [ Py 3

i,
rh [ Py 3

i,
H [ Py

i,/
wh it

FE,
rh P B

a3l
b Py
thiE,/
rh [ Py

i,
rh [ P

TE/
o P

Hit
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2RI
el
M A

20,000,000
ET

11,700,000
RIG

AR
270,000,000

AR
70,000,000

20,000,000
e

AR
92,000,000

AR
462,000,000

AR
119,310,000

AR
95,061,700

133,884,300

100 #76

AT R
&+ NE =
HE EE
- 100

100

- 79.9

100

100
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40. FEMBARIEE (8D

FEME AL/ BAIT
BicHh s K yepilind FATFRLE

AR bt s R A Wai |t FEWE
HE A
Yo RKE (M) FRAA" hiE,” 12,280,000 - 100 15K ab 2
CPR¥E@E)) o [EH A i £
HKKE L) BRARF R, AR - 70 15K AL
(PfE@)) PR 278,877,000
FRAKE (Breslidk) AR R, AR - 100 157K Ak 2
A (BE@) hE ML 386,848,000
HRKKSE (i) BERAERAR it 100 370 - 100 BEER
FeRKE CHEM) BRAF" R, AR - 100  J5/KACEE R
CPfyE@)) rRE R 183,365,200 HhoK I H
HkK GEHESKRIE) T57KACH hE,/ 4,925,000 - 100 ¥57K4bFE R
FRAT (fHE@)) [ A ey rh 7K B
WK (FrEgER) KEERAR hE, AR - 999  {EKANEE R
CPfHAE@)) RERHE 104,291,600 R K 5 H
FRKSE (5 ARAR" hE, 106,246,600 - 100 VEY/COF L
CPR¥E@ED o E i £
KK (FFEER) FRAR* hE, ARh - 99 157K b
CPfHE@)) FREAH 85,200,000
KKK CEE) GRAF" b, AR - 100 157K b1
(FfHE@ED EAHL 58,200,000
FRKSE (B FRAF FEH,” 100,000,000 - 100 157K b3
(@) o [ P b It
FKIKS CGERD HRAR? RE, AR - 90 157K b
(PfiE@E)) hEAH 169,521,765
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FHEBRARER (8

FEM RS/
BioH s &
4K =g bz R
KkKE CERE) BRAF hE
(@)D [ Py
KkKkE (KR FRAR) HE,
CPEE)) rh [E Ay b
KK (FED) BRAR" hE,
(PHE@)) FRE P i
YRS (BT FRAA HE,
C [FeRkAKREmET] O # ep [ 3t
CPEQ) K BHEEY)
NKRKE FE) BERARAH i
C[36RKkS (FS B D
FRAKSE GBS HRAH i,
C[HRKEER] ) ? R E
CPE@ED
FekAKE GRID BRAR" RE,
o
KK (FHHD HRAR? HhE,/
CBRHE@)) b E A
Nokkg CES) BRERAH i
FeRKE (BB BRAR" HhE,
CBREQ) R BfHEE)) rp [ R
KKkKEEE Frim) AR hE,
AT (BHEG) e [ Pyt
FeRKFERMEEARAR" R,
CPfE@)) rhE A
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R
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157,150,387
ESTF

22,140,200
RTG

N
96,186,423

AR
488,690,000

10,710,680
#ou

89,561,700
RTG
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M AL/
FioHig K&
B2y 8 Eb b
BrEE KAt AKE PR A 7 HE,
(PfE@)) [ Py b
ERNAKKEHERAT" FE,
C(BE@ED rh [ P
B2 KIEKEBERAR" FE,/
CPfFE@E)D r 5] A i
New Efficient Limited FEIRPER Y
Ocean Force International KERERERS
Limited
REREP XI5 K hE/
HEFRAR" rf [ P
BEPE H A AR A R A R FE,
rp [ P b
Bre e AR ia A RA R il
rp [ P b
HKF R (I FRAR? HE
CPH¥E@E) Hh [ P b
EYIH K ERBERFEAR HE,
rh [E Py b
REEGFHRAH &
W TS KEBEERAT" FE
@D rhE A
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MRS/
BioHh K
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CPi3E@)) FH [ Py i
BHKARIKKESERAR" FE/
QiirzC))) i [H Py Hb
fEE b Kb L HE
HRAR" [ Py b
AT HIRib kS EREIR HRE
YN [ Pyt
REDCRIMARIH AR AR hE
H [ P 1
Victor Best Holdings Limited — ZE@4E/RNEES
World Pioneer Investments HBGEIREATES
Limited
T B AR AR RE/
[ P b
FE bR KA AR AR HE
CPfE@)) o [ P i
IR RIK S BRI & HE
BRAR" v [ P
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EW Environment Investment
Co., Ltd.
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